
City Council 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

Date:   10/6/2015 

Time:  7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers    
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 
 

6:00 p.m. Closed Session 

  Public Comment on these items will be taken prior to adjourning to Closed Session 

CL1.  Closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding real property negotiations 
(1 matter):   

Property:   Property owned by the City of Menlo Park located at the northeast side of 
101/Willow Road Overpass, Menlo Park  

City Negotiators:   City Attorney Bill McClure, City Manager Alex McIntyre, Assistant Public 
Works Director Ruben Nino  

Negotiating Parties:  City of Menlo Park (Owner) and CalTrans, California Department of  
   Transportation (Buyer) 
Negotiation:   Potential sale of real property owned by the City of Menlo Park at the 

northeast side of 101/Willow Overpass from Menlo Park to CalTrans, 
including but not limited to instructions regarding sales price and other terms 
of sale 

CL2. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957.6 to conference with labor 
negotiators regarding labor negotiations with Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 

Attendees: City Manager Alex McIntyre, Interim Administrative Services Director Nick Pegueros, 
City Attorney Bill McClure, Interim Human Resources Director Dave Bertini, Interim Finance  
Director Clay Curtin, Labor Counsel Charles Sakai 

7:00 p.m. Regular Session (as soon as the closed session is concluded)  

A.  Call to Order  

B.  Roll Call  

C.  Pledge of Allegiance  

D.  Report from Closed Session  

E.  Presentations and Proclamations  

E1. Proclamation announcing National Bullying Prevention Month and National Unity Day on October 21  

E2. Presentation by Community Services Staff on Anti Bullying project  

PAGE 1



Agenda Page 2 

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

E3. Proclamation recognizing Menlo Park’s Foster Freeze owner Sung Lee

E4. Proclamation to join local effort to combat human trafficking  

F. Commissioner Reports

F1. Library Commission quarterly updates report 

G. Commission/Committee Vacancies and Appointments

G1. Consider applicants for appointment to fill one vacancy on the Bicycle Commission and 
one vacancy on the Finance & Audit Committee (Staff Report 15-146-CC)   

H. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Commission on any subject not listed on the
agenda. Each speaker may address the Commission once under Public Comment for a limit of
three minutes. Please clearly state your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.
The Commission cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Commission
cannot respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide
general information.

I.

I1. 

I2. 

I3. 

I4. 

I5. 

Consent Calendar

Approve a partnership and sponsorship policy for Community Services Department events and 
programs (Staff Report 15-147-CC)

Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by Casey Construction, Inc. for 
the 2013-14 Water Main Replacement Project (Staff Report 15-144-CC)

Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by Thermal Mechanical, Inc. for 
new chillers and variable frequency drives at the Administration Building and Library Project
(Staff Report 15-145-CC)

Adopt a Resolution accepting dedication of a storm drain line easement from Hibiscus Properties, 
LLC (Facebook Building 300) and authorize the City Manager to sign agreements and easements 
required by Conditions of Approval of the Project (Staff Report 15-148-CC)

Approve minutes for the Council meeting of September 8 and September 21, 2015 (Attachment)

J.

J1.

J2. 

Regular Business

Review of Draft General Plan Land Use and Circulation Elements and Bayfront Area (M-2 Area) 
Zoning Summary and Reconfirm the Composition of the General Plan Advisory Committee
(Staff Report 15-149-CC)

El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan – Biennial Review (Staff Report 15-150-CC)

PAGE 2



Agenda Page 3 

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

K. Informational Items

K1. Update on the State of California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (CA MWELO) 
(Staff Report 15-151-CC) 

L. Adjournment

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at www.menlopark.org and can receive e-mail
notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme.
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 10/1/2015)

At every Regular Meeting of the Commission, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the
right to address the Commission on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have
the right to directly address the Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either
before or during the Commission’s consideration of the item.

At every Special Meeting of the Commission, members of the public have the right to directly address the Commission on
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either before or during consideration of the item.

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Commission by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s Office,
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.

Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in Commission meetings, may
call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.

PAGE 3

http://www.menlopark.org/
http://www.menlopark.org/notifyme


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 4



City Manager's Office 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 
Staff Report Number:  15-146-CC 
 
Commission Report:  Consider applicants for appointment to fill one 

vacancy on the Bicycle Commission and one 
vacancy on the Finance and Audit Committee  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends appointing applicants to fill one vacancy on the Bicycle Commission and one vacancy 
on the Finance and Audit Committee. 

 
Policy Issues 
Council Policy CC-01-004 establishes the policies, procedures, roles and responsibilities for the City’s 
appointed commissions and committees, including the manner in which commissioners are selected. 

 
Background 
Staff conducted recruitment for the vacant positions for a period of six weeks by posting notices on the 
City’s Facebook page, twitter and website, and by reaching out to the community through the social media 
site Next Door, and emailing past commission applicants. 
 
The current vacancies exist due to the resignation of former Bicycle Commissioner Matthew Zumstein and 
former Finance and Audit Committee Member Laura Phelps. 
 
Applicants to the Bicycle Commission: 
Kacia Brockman 
Cheryl Cathey 
Elizabeth (Betsy) Nash 
Vincent Poon 
Michael Shaw 
 
The person appointed to the Bicycle Commission will serve out the existing unexpired term which runs 
through April 30, 2018 and, per current policy, is considered a full term. 
 
Applicants to the Finance and Audit Committee: 
Michael DeMoss 
Soody Tronson 
 
The person appointed to the Finance and Audit Committee will serve out the existing unexpired term 
which runs through April 30, 2016. 

AGENDA ITEM G-1

PAGE 5



Staff Report #: 15-146-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

All applications will be provided to the City Council under separate cover and are also available for public 
viewing at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours upon request. 

 
Analysis 
Pursuant to City Council Policy CC-01-004, commission members must be residents of the City of Menlo 
Park and serve for designated terms of four years, or through the completion of an unexpired term.  
Residency for all applicants has been verified by the Clerk’s office.  In addition, the Council’s policy states 
that the selection/appointment process shall be conducted before the public at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the City Council.  Nominations will be made a vote will be called for each nomination. 
Applicants receiving the highest number of affirmative votes from a majority of the Council present shall be 
appointed.    

 
Impact on City Resources 
Staff support for selection of commissioners is included in the FY 2015-16 budget. 

 
Environmental Review 
This item does not require environmental review. 

 
Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Excerpt of Council Policy CC-01-004 
 
Report prepared by: 
Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 6



City of Menlo Park  City Council Policy  

Department  
 City Council  
 
Subject  
Commissions/Committees Policies and Procedures and Roles        

and Responsibilities  

 Effective Date 
3-13-01 

Approved by:  
Motion by the City Council   

on 03-13-2001;  
Amended 09-18-2001;  
Amended 04-05-2011 

Procedure # 
CC-01-0004 

 

 

 
Application/Selection Process  

1. The application process begins when a vacancy occurs due to term expiration, resignation, removal or death of 
a member.  

 
2. The application period will normally run for a period of four weeks from the date the vacancy occurs.  If there 

is more than one concurrent vacancy in a Commission, the application period may be extended.  Applications 
are available from the City Clerk’s office and on the City’s website.  

 
3. The City Clerk shall notify members whose terms are about to expire whether or not they would be eligible for 

reappointment.  If reappointment is sought, an updated application will be required. 
 

4. Applicants are required to complete and return the application form for each Commission/Committee they 
desire to serve on, along with any additional information they would like to transmit, by the established 
deadline. Applications sent by fax, email or submitted on-line are accepted; however, the form submitted must 
be signed.  

 
5. After the deadline of receipt of applications, the City Clerk shall schedule the matter at the next available 

regular Council meeting.  All applications received will be submitted and made a part of the Council agenda 
packet for their review and consideration.  If there are no applications received by the deadline, the City Clerk 
will extend the application period for an indefinite period of time until sufficient applications are received.  

 
6. Upon review of the applications received, the Council reserves the right to schedule or waive interviews, or to 

extend the application process in the event insufficient applications are received.  In either case, the City Clerk 
will provide notification to the applicants of the decision of the Council.  

 
7. If an interview is requested, the date and time will be designated by the City Council.  Interviews are open to 

the public.  
 
8. The selection/appointment process by the Council shall be conducted open to the public.  Nominations will be 

made and a vote will be called for each nomination.  Applicants receiving the highest number of affirmative 
votes from a majority of the Council present shall be appointed.  

 
9. Following a Council appointment, the City Clerk shall notify successful and unsuccessful applicants 

accordingly, in writing.  Appointees will receive copies of the City’s Non-Discrimination and Sexual 
Harassment policies, and disclosure statements for those members who are required to file under State law as 
designated in the City’s Conflict of Interest Code.  Copies of the notification will also be distributed to support 
staff and the Commission/Committee Chair.  

 
10. An orientation will be scheduled by support staff following an appointment (but before taking office) and a 

copy of this policy document will be provided at that time.  
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 7



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 8



Community Services 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 
Staff Report Number:  15-147-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Approve a Partnership and Sponsorship Policy for 

Community Services Department Events and 
Programs  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached Community Services Department Partnership 
and Sponsorship Policy for Special Events and Programs. 

 
Policy Issues 
Council has established a User Fee / Cost Recovery Policy setting specific expectations for the level of 
cost recovery to be achieved by Community Services programs.  Approval of a defined partnership and 
sponsorship policy will support the Department’s efforts to improve the quality of community events and 
programs while meeting the Council’s cost recovery policy targets. 

 
Background 
The Community Services Department supports over 100 individual programs, classes, services and over a 
dozen community events and activities each year.  Since 2007, sponsorships for these events and 
activities have helped the Department achieve Council mandated cost recovery levels.  Currently, 
sponsorships account for about $16,000 in annual revenue to the Department, against a total budget of 
almost $8 million, including monetary and other support for events such as 4th of July, Summer Concert 
Series, Breakfast with Santa, Egg Hunt and more. 
 
As the Department continues to improve the scope and quality of special events while keeping events free 
or very low cost to promote community participation, sponsorships have become a more important 
revenue source as well as an opportunity for community based businesses and other partners to become 
involved and give back to their home town.  A sponsorship policy approved by Council will support staff in 
increasing partnerships for special events such as Egg Hunt, Kite Day, and the Menlo Movie Series as 
well as for supporting scholarship programs in support of low-income participants, Senior Center Nutrition 
and Meal Program, and many more.  

 
Analysis 
Sponsorships are cash or in-kind monetary contributions or donations of products and services offered by 
sponsors with the clear expectation that the recipient is obliged to return something of value to the partner.  
The value is typically recognition and publicity or advertising highlighting the contribution of the partner or 
the partners’ name, logo, message, products or services.  The partner usually has specific marketing 

AGENDA ITEM I-1

PAGE 9



Staff Report #: 15-147-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

objectives for the sponsorship such as the right to be the exclusive sponsor in some category of sales.  
The arrangement is typically formalized by a letter of agreement or contract detailing the particulars of the 
exchange.  Sponsorships are different from donations in that donations come with no restrictions on how 
the money or in-kind resources are used.  The attached policy addresses partnerships and sponsorships, 
the agreements for the procurement of resources and the benefits provided in return for securing those 
resources.  Since donations or gifts come with no restrictions or expected benefits for the donor, a policy is 
generally not needed for them. 
 
The attached policy, based on models from other area communities with a more formalized sponsorship 
process, defines the purposes of a sponsorship policy, the procedures to be followed when establishing a 
sponsorship relationship with a partner, the limitations and restrictions on the agreement, the value of the 
sponsorship (including how payments will be managed, pricing tiers and insurance requirements), and the 
recognition and benefits the partners will receive for their contribution.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission, at their September 23, 2015 meeting, approved this policy while 
suggesting staff consider adding a system for choosing among potential “named event” partners should 
competing potential partnerships arise in the future.  The City Attorney has also reviewed and approved 
the policy. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
Currently, event and activity sponsorships generate about $16,000 annually for Community Services.  It is 
anticipated that, with a more defined and clearly articulated policy, partnerships will continue to grow as a 
revenue source.  This year, $35,000 was budgeted for sponsorships in the Council approved 2015-16 
Budget. 

 
Environmental Review 
A sponsorship policy is not subject to California Environmental Quality Act requirements. 

 
Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Proposed Community Services Department Partnership and Sponsorship Policy 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Cherise Brandell, Community Services Director 
 

PAGE 10



PARTNERSHIP & SPONSORSHIP POLICY 
Community Services 
701 Laurel St, Menlo Park, CA 94025  
tel 650-330-2200 
 
 
 

Purpose 

In an effort to maximize the community’s resources, it is in the best interest of the City’s Community Services Department 
to create and enhance relationship‐based Partnerships. This may be accomplished by providing local, regional, and 
national commercial businesses and non‐profit groups a method for becoming involved with the many opportunities 
provided by the Community Services Department. The Department delivers quality, life‐enriching programs and activities 
to the broadest base of the community. This translates into exceptional visibility for sponsors and supporters. The goal of 
this policy is to create relationships and Partnerships with sponsors to support the financial health of the Department. 

Partnerships  

Partnerships are cash or in‐kind products and services offered by sponsors with the clear expectation that an obligation is 
created. The recipient is obliged to return something of value to the Partner. The value is typically public recognition and 
publicity or advertising highlighting the contribution of the Partner and/or the Partner’s name, logo, message, products or 
services. The Partner usually has clear marketing objectives, including, but not limited to, the ability to drive sales directly 
based on the Partnership, and, quite often, the right to be the exclusive sponsor in a specific category of sales. The 
arrangement is typically consummated by a letter of agreement or contractual arrangement detailing the particulars of the 
exchange. Some programs, such as the Menlo Park Summer Concert Series or Menlo Movie Series may have multiple 
sponsors in a specific category since these Partners sponsor a specific event although marketing collateral would be 
combined.   

Donations 

A donation comes with no restrictions on how the money or in‐kind resources are used. This policy specifically addresses 
Partnerships, the agreements for the procurement of the resources, and the benefits provided in return for securing those 
resources. Since donations or gifts come with no restrictions or expected benefits for the donor, a policy is generally not 
needed.  

Eligibility 

Partners should be businesses, non‐profits, or individuals promoting mutually beneficial relationships for the Community 
Services Department and the City of Menlo Park. All potentially sponsored programs or facilities should be reviewed in 
order to create synergistic working relationships regarding benefits, community contributions, knowledge, and political 
sensitivity. All sponsored programs should promote the goals and mission of the City of Menlo Park and the Community 
Services Department. 

Partnership Contact Maintenance 

The Community Services Director or designee, is responsible for maintaining an updated list of all current Partnerships, 
sponsored activities, and contacts related to Partnerships in order to: 

• Limit duplicated solicitations of a single entity 
• Allow decisions based on the most appropriate solicitations and level of benefits offered 
• Keep a current list of Department supporters and contacts 
• Help provide leads for new Partnerships, if appropriate 
• Ensure sponsor mission and values are in line with the mission and values of the Menlo Park Community 

Services Department 
• Confirm sponsorship agreement(s) are adequately fulfilled 

Not a Public Forum 

In adopting the Partnership and Sponsorship Policy, it is the City of Menlo Park’s declared intention and purpose to not 
permit any marketing Partnerships that individually or in combination would cause any real or personal property, facilities, 
vehicles, or communication media owned or controlled by the City to become a public forum for the dissemination, debate 
or discussion of public issues. 

  

PAGE 11



2 
 

 CS-1DS Rev 9.15.15 
 

Procedures 

1. Any new Partnership program, event or benefit by the Department must be approved by the Director or a 
designee. 

2. Partnership levels vary and are established based on the Partners’ level of exposure and fair market value.   
3. Partnership opportunities can include donated product, in-kind services, and money to offset operating and 

material costs. The total sum of sponsorship funds offered for the specific event/series (monetary) and total 
estimated value of in-kind contributions (goods or services) will determine the sponsorship category of each 
Partner. 

4. All Partnership values must be reviewed and approved by the Community Services Director or designee. All 
Partners will be provided an approved Partner packet with approved Partnership benefits, levels and values.  

5. All marketing materials that include Partner logos or names (i.e. flyers, posters, t-shirts, press releases, web links, 
etc.) must be approved by the Director or designee. 

6. All Partnership agreements must be signed by the Department Director or designee and use the approved 
agreement form.  

7. All Partnership agreements that include logos, names, etc. on print materials require a minimum lead time of two 
months prior to the event or program start date. This time is needed in order to execute the agreement, receive 
payment and provide benefits to the Partner. All other agreements require a minimum lead time of two weeks 
prior to the event or program start date.  Sponsorship agreements submitted after the established deadlines will 
not be accepted; negotiations or subsidized sponsorships will not be made.   

Limitations/Restrictions 

1. The Department may refuse a Partnership if the organization promotes a program or service that is competitive 
with the Department’s programs and services; the organization is associated with religious, political, alcohol, 
tobacco, firearms, pornographic, scandalous, or “adult” themed products and services; or the Partnership would 
create a conflict of interest with City policy. The City has a reasonable interest in maintaining a position of 
neutrality. 

2. Final approval of all Partner provided content, graphics and layout must be given by the Director or designee. 
3. The City retains full control of how a program, event or service will be delivered, managed and operated.  
4. This policy is not applicable to gifts, grants or unsolicited donations in which no benefits are granted to the donor 

and where no business relationship exists. 
5. The City may cancel a program or event (i.e. budget reduction, City Council action, weather conditions, etc.). 

Partners will be provided written notice of the cancellation and pro-rated/full refunds issued or materials will be 
returned. 

6. The City of Menlo Park has the right to inspect a Partner booth at any time prior to or during an event. Restrictions 
on what a Partner may distribute or display at an event will be provided prior to the event. Partners must distribute 
only their own organization’s marketing materials and cannot distribute materials for other organizations. All 
Partners wanting to share or give their booth to other organizations have approval of the Director or designee. 

7. The City’s logo may not be used by a Partner in any way without the permission of the Department Director or 
designee. If permission is granted, all materials must be reviewed and approved.  

8. Distribution of or advertising in any format that is political, offensive, or issue oriented is prohibited. 
9. Marketing materials provided by the Partner should be accurate, well-organized and clearly identifiable as a 

commercial marketing collateral piece. Materials stating that the City of Menlo Park endorses a commercial entity 
are strictly prohibited. 

10. All Partnership agreements are with the listed or defined commercial or non-profit entity. Any subsidiary or affiliate 
of the Partner must either obtain permission of the City of Menlo Park to be included in the Partnership 
arrangement benefits or create a separate Partnership arrangement. 

11. Partners must submit high-quality digital artwork/logo by the established deadline for each event or risk their logo 
not being included in marketing materials. The City will not alter Partner logos with the exception of re-sizing. 
Partner logos may not contain contact information such as numbers, e-mails, or website unless it is part of the 
sponsor name/brand (ie. Amazon.com, Pets.com, etc.). 

12. The City will make all reasonable attempts to include the Partner’s name/logo through the marketing and 
promotional activities associated with an event or program in which a Partner’s name/logo is included or where 
the Partner’s marketing materials are presented. Examples include: printed materials, t-shirts, promotional 
products, website content, email communication/e-blasts, advertising, newsletters, calendars, social media, 
banners, and on-site display booths. 

13. Only one organization will be allowed a Title Sponsorship per event, program or series. Series events will be 
capped to one sponsor per event date where an exclusive sponsorship exists. All other sponsorship categories 
will remain open until their cutoff date, unless otherwise identified by staff.  

PAGE 12



3 
 

 CS-1DS Rev 9.15.15 
 

Partnership Value 

All Partnership values will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Department’s leadership team. New events or 
programs that are added during the year must follow the valuation guidelines. Final Partnership values and 
corresponding benefits must be approved by the Director or designee. 

Partnership values are established by the Community Services Department based on the estimated attendance and 
marketing for each event or program, or other criteria determined by the Director or designee, such as anticipated 
community benefit.   

Payments 

All Partner payments including in-kind goods or services must be received prior to the event or program being 
delivered. Benefits may only be delivered if the payment terms of the agreement are met. Any exceptions must be 
approved by the Director or designee. Partners may pay with Visa, Mastercard, check, or cash.   

Special Event Pricing Tiers 

Attendance  Pricing Tier Title Platinum  Gold Silver Bronze  

4000+ 3 $10,000 $7,500 $5,000 $2,500 $1,000 

1000-3999 2 $7,500 $1,000 $750 $500 $250 

Under 999 1 $5,000 $750 $500 $250 $100 

Current Special Event Tiers 

Event / Program  Attendance  Pricing Tier  

4th of July Parade & Celebration 5000 3 

Summer Concert Series  3000 2 

Egg Hunt 2750 2 

Halloween Hoopla  2000 2 

Menlo Movie Series  1250 2 

Kite Day 600 1 

MA PAC Programs 500 1 

Breakfast with Santa 400 1 

Insurance 

Partners will be required to provide proof of insurance with the City of Menlo Park listed as an additional insured if the 
Partnership includes the following:  

• Utilization of City facility, park, or equipment not in conjunction with a City sponsored event 
• Any promotion or activity at a City sponsored event that goes above and beyond what is normally provided by 

the City (i.e. rides, games, other activities) 
• As required through the approval of a permit or facility use agreement 
• Certificate of Liability Insurance must include:  

− The renter’s name must be listed as the one “insured.”  
− The policy must not expire before the planned event date.  
− The policy must be for $1,000,000.  
− The “description” should list the rental location, day, and event planned.  
− The City of Menlo Park at 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 must be noted as “additional 

insured.”  
PAGE 13



4 
 

 CS-1DS Rev 9.15.15 
 

Recognition & Benefits 

1. Partnership benefits should follow the benefit tiers detailed in each event sponsorship packet.  
2. All Partnership benefits that include complimentary services (tickets, wristbands, etc.) should not exceed 20% of 

the total value of the sponsorship for that individual program. 
3. All Partners will receive a letter of appreciation and digital photos of the event or program. Summary of the event 

or program including attendance estimates can be provided on request 
4. For events that include title sponsors or capped sponsorships (ie. Summer Concert Series and Menlo Movie 

Series), the previous year sponsor(s) will be granted first right of contract based on the following order:   
• Title sponsors 
• Platinum Sponsors 
• Gold Sponsors 
• Silver Sponsors 
• Bronze Sponsors 

Appeal Process 
The City may decline to partner with any organization at any time.  When partnerships are declined, potential partners 
may appeal the decision to the Director of Community Services by submitting an appeal letter in writing. 

Endorsement 
A Partnership, under this Partnership and Sponsorship Policy, shall in no way constitute an endorsement of the partner’s 
organization, products, services or employees by the City of Menlo Park and / or the Community Services Department. 
 

PAGE 14



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  

Meeting Date:  10/6/2015 

Staff Report Number: 15-144-CC 

Consent Calendar: Authorize the Public Works Director to Accept the 

Work Performed by Casey Construction, Inc. for 

the 2013-14 Water Main Replacement Project  

Recommendation 

Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by Casey Construction, Inc. for the 
2013-14 Water Main Replacement Project. 

Policy Issues 

There are no policy issues associated with this action. The one-year warranty period starts upon City’s 
acceptance. 

Background 

On August 19, 2014, the City Council awarded a contract to Casey Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
$1,225,505 with an authorized project budget of $1,409,505 including contingencies.  The project 
consisted of installing approximately one-half mile of new water main along Trinity Drive (located between 
Tioga Drive and Klamath Drive) and Trinity Court. These new water mains will replace the existing 
asbestos cement water mains that had major breaks three times in the last six years.  

Analysis 

The work for the 2013-14 Water Main Replacement Project has been completed in accordance with the 
plans and specifications.  A notice of completion will be filed accordingly.  The project was completed 
within the approved budget. 

Contractor:  Casey Construction, Inc. 
 619 Sylvan Way 
 Emerald Hills, CA 64062 

Impact on City Resources 

Construction Contract Budget 

 Amount 

Construction contract $1,225,505 
Contingency $184,000 
Total construction budget $1,409,505 

AGENDA ITEM I-2

PAGE 15



Staff Report #: 15-144-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Construction Expenditures 

                                                                                                                                     Amount 

Construction contract $1,222,566 
Change orders $33,218 
 $1,255,784 

 
The remaining balance will be credited to the project balance.  The above expenditures are only costs 
associated with the construction contract with Casey Construction, Inc. 

 

Environmental Review 

The project is categorically exempt under Class I of the current State of California Environmental Quality 
Act guidelines, which allows minor alterations and replacement of existing facilities. 

 

Public Notice 

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Attachments 

None  
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Rene Punsalan, Associate Civil Engineer 

Ruben Nino, Assistant Public Works Director 

PAGE 16



Public Works 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 
Staff Report Number:  15-145-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Authorize the Public Works Director to Accept the 

Work Performed by Thermal Mechanical Inc. for 
New Chillers and Variable Frequency Drives at the 
Administration Building and Library Project  

 
Recommendation 
Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by Thermal Mechanical Inc. for new 
chillers and variable frequency drives at the Administration Building and Library project. 

 
Policy Issues 
There are no policy issues associated with this action.  The one-year construction warranty period starts 
upon City’s acceptance. 

 
Background 
On April 14, 2015, the City Council awarded a contract for the new chillers and variable frequency drives 
replacement project for the Administration Building and Library to Thermal Mechanical Inc. This project 
consisted of removing the old chillers and installing new ones. A new variable frequency drive was 
installed to control the chilled water circulation pump motor at the Administration Building. Also, new 
variable frequency drives installed at the Library to control Air Handler #2 as well as both hot and chilled 
water circulation pump motors.  Also, replacing the chilled and hot water pumps at the Library was 
included.  

 
Analysis 
The work for the new chillers and variable frequency drives replacement project has been completed in 
accordance with the plans and specifications. A notice of completion will be filed accordingly.  The project 
was completed within the approved project budget.   

 Contractor:  Thermal Mechanical Inc. 
   425 Aldo Avenue 
   Santa Clara, CA 95054 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM I-3

PAGE 17



Staff Report #: 15-145-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Impact on City Resources 
 

Construction Contract Budget 
                                                                                                                                     Amount 

Construction contract $561,160 
Contingency $30,000 
Total construction budget $591,160 

 
Construction Expenditures 

                                                                                                                                     Amount 
Construction contract $561,160 
Change orders $22,880 
Total project cost $584,040 

 

 
Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under Class I of the current State of California Environmental Quality 
Act guidelines. 

 
Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
None  
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Carl Thomas, Facilities Supervisor 
 
Ruben Niño, Assistant Public Works Director 

PAGE 18



Public Works 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 

Staff Report Number:  15-148-CC 
 

Consent Calendar:  Adopt a Resolution Accepting Dedication of a 

Storm Drain Line Easement from Hibiscus 

Properties, LLC (Facebook Building 300) and 

Authorize the City Manager to Sign Agreements 

and Easements required by Conditions of 

Approval of the Project  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (included as Attachment A) accepting dedication 
of a Storm Drain Line Easement from Hibiscus Properties, LLC and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
agreement required by the conditions of approval of the project. 

 

Policy Issues 

The Storm Drain Line Agreement (Attachment B) is required by the approved Use Permit for the Facebook 
project at 300 Constitution Drive.  In order for the storm drain easement to become public it must be 
accepted by the City Council. 

 

Background 

In December 2014, Facebook received Planning Commission approval of a Use Permit to convert an 
existing approximately 180,000 square foot warehouse and distribution building to offices and ancillary 
employee amenities, located at 300 Constitution Drive (Building 23) near the intersection of Constitution 
Drive and Chilco Street. Construction is underway and the building is scheduled for completion in summer 
of 2016. 
 
There is an existing storm drain line originating at U.S. Route 101 and running across the property.  The 
approved project would allow a new wooden deck and trash enclosure to be built over the existing storm 
drain line. The Use Permit provides as follows:   
 
Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall redesign the 
proposed outdoor deck and trash enclosure to be located outside of a 15 foot buffer centered on the 
existing 30 inch on-site storm drain.  Alternatively, the applicant may elect to enter into an agreement with 
the City prior to issuance of a permit for the tenant improvements to address issues of access to, 
maintenance of, and potential future relocation of the storm drain line.   
 
Hibiscus Properties, LLC on behalf of Facebook, Inc. has requested to enter into an Agreement with the 
City which will meet the condition of approval.   
 

AGENDA ITEM I-4

PAGE 19



Staff Report #: 15-148-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 

Analysis 

The proposed Storm Drain Line Agreement will allow the installation of an outdoor deck and trash 
enclosure within the Storm Drain Line Easement Area, and will allow the City access to the property and 
the storm drain line when necessary for maintenance or repair. Ultimately, the storm drain line is 
anticipated to be relocated to Chilco Street at the sole cost of the owner.  If the storm drain line is not 
relocated, the outdoor deck and trash enclosures shall be removed from the easement within five years of 
the date of the Agreement.   
 
Staff is requesting authorization for the City Manager to sign the Storm Drain Line Agreement.  

 

Impact on City Resources 

The staff time associated with review and acceptance of the storm drain easement dedication is fully 
recoverable through fees collected from the applicant. 

 

Environmental Review 

The acceptance of the dedication of the Storm Drain Easement is categorically exempt under Class I of 
the current State of California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 

 

Public Notice 

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Attachments 

A. Resolution of the City of Menlo Park Accepting a Storm Drain Easement from Hibiscus Properties LLC 
B. Storm Drain Line Agreement 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Theresa Avedian, P.E, Senior Civil Engineer 

 
Report reviewed by: 
Ruben Niño, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director 

PAGE 20



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK ACCEPTING DEDICATION 
OF A STORM DRAIN LINE EASEMENT FROM HIBISCUS PROPERTIES, 
LLC (FACEBOOK BUILDING 300) 

The City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having considered and 
been fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing therefor, 

BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
that the City Council does hereby accept the dedication of a storm drain line easement 
from Hibiscus Properties LLC: 

BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ALSO RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City 
Manager to sign the agreement regarding storm drain line which includes acceptance of 
a storm drain line easement. 

I, PAMELA AGUILAR, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on this sixth day of October, 2015, by the following votes: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this sixth day of October, 2015. 

_____________________________ 
Pamela Aguilar 
City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 22



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Attention: City Clerk 

AGREEMENT REGARDING STORM DRAIN LINE 

This Agreement Regarding Storm Drain Line (this “Agreement”) is made as of 
October ___, 2015 (the “Effective Date”) by and between HIBISCUS PROPERTIES, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company (the “Owner”) and the CITY OF MENLO PARK, 
CALIFORNIA (the “City”) in the following factual context: 

A. The Owner is the owner of that certain real property commonly known as 300-
309 Constitution Drive, Menlo Park, California 94025 and as more particularly described on the 
attached Exhibit A (the “Property”). 

B. There is an existing storm drain line originating at U.S. Route 101 and running
across the Property (the “Storm Drain Line”). The location of the portion of the Storm Drain 
Line located on the Property is more particularly described and shown on the attached 
Exhibit B. 

C. The Owner is in the process of converting an existing approximately 180,000
square foot warehouse and distribution building commonly known as 300 Constitution Drive, 
Menlo Park, California 94025 (“Building 300”) to general offices and ancillary employee 
amenities (the “Project”). 

D. The Project was subject to architectural control and required a use permit. On
December 15, 2014 the City’s Planning Commission approved the Owner’s request for 
architectural approval and a use permit (such permit, the “Use Permit”). 

E. The Project included an outdoor deck that would extend across the Storm Drain
Line, as shown in more detail on the attached Exhibit C. 

F. Among the Use Permit’s project specific conditions was a condition relating to the
Storm Drain Line. Specifically, the Use Permit provides as follows: 

Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 
applicant shall redesign the proposed outdoor deck and trash enclosure to be 
located outside of a 15 foot buffer centered on the existing 30 inch on-site storm 
drain. Alternatively, the applicant may elect to enter into an agreement with the 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 23



 

2 

City prior to issuance of a permit for tenant improvements to address issues of 
access to, maintenance of, and potential future relocation of the storm drain line. 

G. The Owner has submitted an application for the redevelopment of the remainder 
of the Property (i.e., the portion of the Property in addition to Building 300) (the “TE Site 
Redevelopment”). Given the application pending for the TE Site Redevelopment and the 
infrastructure changes that are likely to be required in connection with the TE Site 
Redevelopment, the Owner prefers to now enter into an agreement with the City addressing 
issues of access to, maintenance of and potential future relocation of the storm drain line rather 
than redesign the proposed outdoor deck and trash enclosure. 

H. The parties now wish to enter into such agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Storm Drain Line. 

a. The Owner hereby grants to the City a non-exclusive easement (the 
“Storm Drain Line Easement”) permitting the City to operate, maintain, repair, renew and 
replace the Storm Drain Line within the strip of real property shown on the attached Exhibit D 
(the “Storm Drain Line Easement Area”). The Owner retains the right to use the surface of the 
Property including, without limitation, the Storm Drain Line Easement Area. This right to use the 
surface of the Property specifically includes the right to install a deck and/or trash enclosures 
upon and/or in the vicinity of the Storm Drain Line Easement Area. The Owner is not 
responsible for maintaining the Storm Drain Line. 

b. As part of the Storm Drain Line Easement, the Owner hereby grants to 
the City a non-exclusive easement to enter and pass over and across the access ways and 
parking areas located from time-to-time on the Property as is reasonably necessary to operate, 
maintain, repair, renew and replace the Storm Drain Line, subject, however, to the terms 
hereof. Prior to entering the Property under this Section 1.b, the City shall give the Owner at 
least two (2) business days’ advance notice, except in case of emergency where only 
contemporaneous notice will be required. All entries by the City upon the Property shall be 
made in a manner that is intended to minimize any interference with or interruption of the 
business operations and activities then being conducted on the Property. 

c. The Owner has the right to install an outdoor deck and/or trash enclosure 
within the Storm Drain Line Easement Area. It is possible that the City may require those 
portions of the outdoor deck and trash enclosure (as applicable) located within the Storm Drain 
Line Easement Area to be temporarily removed so that the City can exercise its rights with 
respect to the Storm Drain Line Easement. If the City requires that any portion(s) of the outdoor 
deck and/or trash enclosure located within the Storm Drain Line Easement Area be temporarily 
removed so that the City can maintain, repair, renew or replace the Storm Drain Line, then the 
Owner, at its sole cost and expense, will remove such portion(s) of the outdoor deck and/or 
trash enclosure that are located within the Storm Drain Line Easement Area and that impede 
the City’s ability to perform maintenance, repair, renewal or replacement of the Storm Drain 
Line. Owner shall complete such removal within the time period identified by the City in the 
notice to Owner. Following the City’s completion of the maintenance, repair, renewal or 
replacement of the Storm Drain Line, the Owner will have the right (but not the obligation) to 
reinstall its outdoor deck and/or trash enclosure (as applicable), subject, however, to the 
Owner’s ongoing obligation to comply with the terms of this Section 1.c. If the Owner does not 

PAGE 24



 

3 

reinstall the trash enclosure in the Storm Drain Line Easement Area, and the Owner is obligated 
to install a trash enclosure, the Owner shall provide a trash enclosure at an alternate location, 
approved by the City, upon the Property. 

d. The Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to relocate the 
Storm Drain Line at its sole cost and expense subject, however, to its receipt of the City’s prior 
written approval as to the location of and means and schedule for implementing such relocation 
(not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed). 

1.  If the Owner obtains entitlements permitting it to proceed with and the 
Owner elects to proceed with the TE Site Redevelopment, the Owner will relocate the 
Storm Drain Line to the City’s right-of-way (Chilco Street) or another alternative location 
reasonably determined by the City and the Owner. A drawing showing a conceptual 
relocation of the Storm Drain Line within the Chico Street right-of-way as part of the TE 
Site Redevelopment is attached hereto as Exhibit E.   

1.1. Upon the completion of the relocation, the Storm Drain Line 
Easement shall terminate in its entirety without the need for any further action by 
either party. However, upon the Owner’s request, the City shall execute and 
deliver to the Owner, in a form suitable for recording, a quitclaim deed or other 
instrument reasonably acceptable to the Owner that confirms and memorializes 
the termination of the Storm Drain Line Easement. If the City fails or refuses to 
deliver to the Owner a quitclaim deed or other instrument reasonably acceptable 
to the Owner, then the Owner shall have the right to obtain equitable and 
injunctive relief to obtain the release of record of the rights of the City with 
respect to the Storm Drain Line Easement.  

1.2. If the Storm Drain Line is relocated and a portion of it remains 
on the Owner’s property, the Owner agrees to grant the City a new easement 
permitting the City to operate, maintain, repair, renew and replace the Storm 
Drain Line (as relocated). 

2.  If the Owner elects to not relocate the Storm Drain Line, within five 
years of the date of this Agreement, the Owner shall remove all structures from the 
Storm Drain Line Easement Area, including but not limited to decking, footings and trash 
enclosure to the reasonable satisfaction of the City. The Owner will remove all such 
structures from the Storm Drain Line Easement Area within 30 days from such election 
or notice from the City to remove. If the Owner fails to timely remove all structures from 
the Storm Drain Line Easement Area, the City shall have the right, but not the obligation, 
to remove the structures and charge the Owner the cost of removing the structures.  The 
City will provide the Owner with an invoice for the cost of such work, payable within 30 
days of the date of the invoice.  If the Owner fails to timely remit payment, the City may 
place a lien on the Property for the cost of removing the structures. It is understood that 
in order to remove the structures from the Storm Drain Line Easement, structures 
outside of the Storm Drain Line Easement Area may also need to be removed.   

e. The grant of the Storm Drain Line Easement shall not create any right in 
favor of the City to enter onto or use any portion of the Property or to use the area subject to the 
Storm Drain Line Easement for purposes other than as stated in this Agreement. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be interpreted or construed so as to, 
preclude or restrict the ability of the Owner to take such measures as the Owner deems 

PAGE 25



 

4 

necessary or appropriate to provide security for the Property, including, without limitation, the 
installation of fencing or other security barriers over or across the Property. The institution of 
any such security measures shall not be deemed to constitute a violation of the City’s rights 
under this Agreement. 

f. At all times that the City or any of its employees, agents, representatives, 
consultants or contractors are on any portion of the Property pursuant to or in connection with 
this Agreement, the City or its contractor(s) shall maintain commercial general liability insurance 
(bodily injury and property damage) with single limits of coverage of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. Coverage must be at least as broad as ISO 
CG 00 01 and must include property damage, bodily injury and personal injury coverage. 
Coverage may be met by a combination of primary and excess insurance, but excess shall 
provide coverage at least as broad as specified for underlying coverage. The Owner shall be an 
additional insured with respect to such policy for claims for bodily injury or property damage 
arising out of maintenance, repair, renewal or replacement activities allowed pursuant to this 
Agreement. Upon the Owner’s request, the City shall furnish the Owner with a current certificate 
of insurance showing the existence of the required insurance and the Owner may make the 
delivery of such certificate of insurance a condition to the City’s entry upon the Property 
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement. 

2. Mutual Indemnity. The Owner shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its 
officials, agents, employees, successors and assigns, from and against any and all losses, 
damages, liabilities, expenses, claims or demands of whatsoever character, direct or 
consequential, including, but without limiting thereby the generality of the foregoing, injury to or 
death of persons and damage to or loss of property, arising out of the Owner’s negligent acts or 
omissions and/or wilful misconduct and related to this Agreement, except, in all cases, to the 
extent arising by reason of the negligence or wilful misconduct of City, including its agents, 
contractors or employees or by a member of the public in general. The City shall indemnify and 
save harmless the Owner, its trustees, directors, officers, agents, employees, successors and 
assigns, from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, expenses, claims or demands 
of whatsoever character, direct or consequential, including, but without limiting thereby the 
generality of the foregoing, injury to or death of persons and damage to or loss of property, 
arising out of the City’s negligent acts or omissions and/or wilful misconduct and related to this 
Agreement, except, in all cases, to the extent arising out of the negligence or wilful misconduct 
of the Owner, including its agents, contractors and employees. 

3. Notices. Whenever in this Agreement a party is required to give notice, the party 
shall give written notice delivered to the other party at the following addresses: 

To the Owner:  Hibiscus Properties, LLC 
c/o Facebook, Inc. 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
Attention: Facilities 

With a copy to: Facebook, Inc. 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
Attention: Facilities & Real Estate Counsel 

PAGE 26



 

5 

To the City:  701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
Attention: Director of Public Works 

Delivery shall be by messenger or by a recognized overnight courier (e.g., Federal Express or 
UPS), return receipt requested. Notice shall be deemed given when delivered and documented 
by a declaration under penalty of perjury by the messenger or the return receipt of the overnight 
courier. A party may change or supplement the addresses given above, or designate additional 
addressees, for purposes of this Section by delivering to the other party written notice in the 
manner set forth above. 

4. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of and shall apply to the respective successors and assigns of the Owner and the 
City. Upon the Owner’s transfer of the Property, the transferring owner shall be released from 
any further obligations under this Agreement and the City agrees to look solely to the successor 
in interest of the transferring owner for the performance of such obligations, provided that the 
transferring owner and its successors, as the case may be, shall remain liable after their 
respective periods of ownership with respect to any events that arose during the period of 
ownership by such party. 

5. Invalidity. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of 
this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in 
effect. 

6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains and integrates the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all 
negotiations and previous agreements, if any, among the parties with respect thereto. 

7. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. 

8. Modification. This Agreement may be modified from time to time by the mutual 
written consent of the parties. 

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and counterpart signature pages may be assembled to 
form a single original document. 

10. Covenants Run With the Land. All of the provisions, agreements, rights, 
powers, standards, terms, covenants and obligations contained in this Agreement shall 
constitute covenants that shall run with the land comprising the Property, and the burdens and 
benefits of this Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall insure to the benefit of, each of the 
parties and their respective heirs, successors, assignees, devisees, administrators, 
representatives and lessees, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date.  

 
 
 

PAGE 27



 

6 

HIBISCUS PROPERTIES, LLC 
 
 
By:       

Its:       
 
 
THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
 
By:       
 Alex D. McIntyre 

City Manager 

PAGE 28



 

 

7 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 
 
Not Applicable 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX $ -0- 
..... Computed on the consideration or value of property 
conveyed; OR 
..... Computed on the consideration or value less liens 

or encumbrances remaining at time of sale. 
 

  
SIGNATURE OF DECLARANT OR AGENT 

DETERMINING TAX - FIRM NAME 

 
 
 

PAGE 29



 

 

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO ) 

On _____________, 2015 , before me,                                                                        , 
 Date                     Name And Title Of Officer (e.g. “Jane Doe, Notary Public”) 

personally appeared                                                                                                                 , 
  Name of Signer(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) 
is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed 
the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

                            
                    Signature of Notary Public 

 

OPTIONAL 
 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the 
document and could prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 
 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

¨ Individual  
¨ Corporate Officer 

  
 Title(s) Title or Type of Document 

¨ Partner(s) ¨ Limited  
 ¨ General  

¨ Attorney-In-Fact Number Of Pages 
¨ Trustee(s)  
¨ Guardian/Conservator  
¨ Other:   

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

Date Of Document 

  
 Signer(s) Other Than Named 

Above 

 

PAGE 30



PAGE 31



PAGE 32



E S/ / P

EXHIBIT B

PAGE 33



E S/ / P

EXHIBIT C

PAGE 34



E S/ / P PAGE 35



E S/ / P
PAGE 36



EXHIBIT D

PAGE 37



PAGE 38



PAGE 39



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 40



City Council 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - Draft   

Date:   9/8/2015 
Time:  6:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers    
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

Closed Session (City Hall Administrative Building, 1st floor conference room) 

Mayor Carlton called the Closed Session to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 

 Roll Call  

Present:  Carlton, Keith, Mueller, Ohtaki 
Absent:   Cline 
Staff:       City Manager Alex McIntyre, Interim Administrative Services Director Nick Pegueros, City 
Attorney Bill McClure, Human Resources Director Gina Donnelly, Interim Finance Director Clay 
Curtin, Labor Counsel Charles Sakai 

 

CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957.6 to confer with labor negotiators 
regarding labor negotiations with Service Employees International Untion (SEIU), American 
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), Police Officers’ Association 
(POA), and Unrepresented Management 

 Public Comment  

 There was no public comment. 

Regular Session  

A.  Call To Order 

 Mayor Carlton called the Regular Session to order at 7:37 p.m. 

B.  Roll Call  

 Present:  Carlton, Cline, Mueller, Ohtaki  
Absent:   Keith  
Staff:       City Manager Alex McIntyre, City Attorney Bill McClure, City Clerk Pamela Aguilar 

 Mayor Carlton led the pledge of allegiance. 

C.  Report from Closed Session  

 There was no reportable action from Closed Session. 

D.  Public Comment 

AGENDA ITEM I-5

PAGE 41



Draft Minutes Page 2 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org 

• Rick Smith spoke regarding the Ygrene Energy Fund 

• Michelle Garff spoke regarding bike lanes on Coleman Avenue 

• Seth Vanderhoven spoke regarding electric scooters 

• Wynn Grcich spoke regarding chem trail spraying 

E.  Regular Business  

E1. Adopt amended salary schedule for 2015-2016 (Staff Report# 15-143-CC) 

 City Manager Alex McIntyre introduced the item. 

 ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Ohtaki) to adopt the amended salary schedule for 2015-16 
passes 4-0-1 (Mayor Pro Tem Cline absent) 

E2. Councilmember Reports 
 

Councilmember Keith reported that she will be travelling to China from September 19 – 29 with the 
non-profit group China Silicon Valley.  Councilmember Mueller reported that he attended a 
stakeholder meeting regarding creating a joint powers authority for education equity. 

 
F. Adjournment 
 

Mayor Carlton adjourned the meeting at 8:07 p.m. 

 

PAGE 42

http://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/7944


City Council 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES - Draft   

Date:   9/21/2015 
Time:  4:00 p.m. 
Administration Building    
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

 
Closed Session  

Mayor Carlton called the Closed Session to order at 4:06 p.m. 
 

 Roll Call  

Present:  Carlton, Cline, Mueller, Ohtaki 
Absent:   Keith 
Staff:       City Manager Alex McIntyre, Interim Administrative Services Director Nick Pegueros, City 
Attorney Bill McClure, Interim Human Resources Director Dave Bertini, Interim Finance Director 
Clay Curtin, Labor Counsel Charles Sakai 

 

CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957.6 to confer with labor negotiators 
regarding labor negotiations with Service Employees International Untion (SEIU), American 
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), Police Officers’ Association 
(POA), and Unrepresented Management 

 Public Comment  

 There was no public comment on this item. 

Regular Session  

A.  Call To Order 

 Mayor Carlton called the Regular Session to order at 4:24 p.m. 

B.  Roll Call  

 Present:  Carlton, Cline, Mueller, Ohtaki  
Absent:   Keith  
Staff:       City Manager Alex McIntyre, Interim Administrative Services Director Nick Pegueros, City 
Attorney Bill McClure, Interim Human Resources Director Dave Bertini, Interim Finance Director 
Clay Curtin, City Clerk Pamela Aguilar 

C.  Report from Closed Session  

 There was no reportable action from Closed Session. 

PAGE 43



Draft Minutes Page 2 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org 

D.  Public Comment  

 There was no public comment. 

E.  Regular Business  

E1. Provide direction regarding proposed resolutions to be considered at the League of California 
Cities Annual Conference and the election of officers for the Peninsula Division Executive 
Committee 

 ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/Cline) to allow Mayor Carlton discretion to vote on the 
resolutions and affirm candidates for the Peninsula Division Executive Committee on behalf of the 
City Council passes 4-0-1 (Councilmember Keith absent). 

E2. Make appointment to “Closing the Gap”, the San Mateo County Affordable Housing Task Force 
 

ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/Ohtaki) to appointment Councilmember Mueller to the San 
Mateo County Affordable Housing Task Forces passes 4-0-1 (Councilmember Keith absent). 

 
F. Adjournment 
 

Mayor Carlton adjourned the meeting at 4:29 p.m. 

 

PAGE 44



 

 

 

THIS DOCUMENT WILL BE AVAILBLE SOON 

PAGE 45



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 46



Community Development 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 
Staff Report Number:  15-150-CC 
 
Regular Business:  El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan – Biennial 

Review  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the biennial review of the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan. The review includes consideration of the Maximum Allowable Development status and other 
informational updates, and direction regarding potential modifications to the Specific Plan. The Planning 
Commission has previously received public input and provided recommendations to the City Council. The 
City Council should provide direction to staff on whether or not to pursue changes in the following 
standards: 
 
• Rear Setback 
• Maximum Setbacks 
• Sidewalks 
• Personal Improvement Services Parking Rate 
• Transportation Demand Management Programs 
• Electric Vehicle Recharging Stations 
• Hotel Parking Rate 
• Additional Parking Reductions for Mixed-Use Projects in the Station Area Sphere of Influence 
• Proposed Changes by Pollock Financial Group: 

• Gross Floor Area Calculation 
• Major Vertical Façade Modulation 

 
Policy Issues 
The multi-year El Camino Real/Downtown Vision Plan and Specific Plan processes resulted in extensive 
policy clarifications and changes related to land use and transportation issues, as described in detail in the 
El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan itself. In particular, the adopted Specific Plan is intended to 
embody the following Guiding Principles: 
 
• Enhance Public Space 
• Generate Vibrancy 
• Sustain Menlo Park's Village Character 
• Enhance Connectivity 
• Promote Healthy Living and Sustainability 
 
As discussed in more detail later, the Specific Plan’s Ongoing Review requirement was established to 
ensure that it is functioning as intended, as well as to consider the policy-related implications of various 
Plan aspects. The staff-recommended modifications described in this report are intended to support and 
enhance the adopted Guiding Principles, and the Planning Commission and City Council may consider 
additional modifications and overall policy issues as part of this review.  

PAGE 47



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
The City Council will separately be considering the General Plan update (also known as ConnectMenlo) at 
the October 6 session and at other upcoming meetings. Staff has considered the recommended Specific 
Plan changes with regard to the draft General Plan Goals, Policies and Programs, and believes them to be 
consistent.  

 
Background 
Vision Plan and Specific Plan Development 
Between 2007 and 2012, the City conducted an extensive long-range planning project for the El Camino 
Real corridor and the Downtown area. The commencement of this project represented a reaction to a 
number of high-visibility vacant parcels and several requests for development-specific General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance Amendments, and the resulting desire for an approach that would instead be 
comprehensive, long-term, and community-focused. The planning process acknowledged from the 
beginning that Menlo Park is a community with diverse and deeply-held opinions regarding development, 
but noted that a deliberate and transparent process would provide the best option for a positive outcome. 
 
The project started with a visioning project (Phase I: 2007-2008) to identify the core values and goals of 
the community and to define the structure of the second phase of planning. The culmination of the first 
phase of work was the City Council’s unanimous acceptance of the Vision Plan in July 2008. The Vision 
Plan established 12 overarching goals for the project area, which served as the foundation for the 
subsequent Specific Plan. The Specific Plan process (Phase II: 2009-2012) was an approximately $1.69 
million planning process informed by review of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and Fiscal Impact 
Analysis (FIA). A key Specific Plan goal was the establishment of a comprehensive, action-oriented set of 
rules, which would establish much greater clarity and specificity with regard to development, both with 
respect to rights as well as requirements.  
 
Both the Vision Plan and Specific Plan processes benefited from extensive community involvement, with 
excellent attendance at workshops and related events, as well as regular public review by a diverse 
Oversight and Outreach Committee. In total, the Vision Plan and/or Specific Plan were an agendized topic 
of discussion at over 90 public meetings over five years, including at least 28 City Council sessions and 18 
Planning Commission sessions. The planning projects were promoted by numerous citywide 
newsletters/postcards, in addition to promotions at the downtown block parties, updates to Chamber of 
Commerce, newspaper coverage, and regular email alerts. Each phase of the project was guided by a 
consulting firm with technical expertise in the required tasks. 
 
In June 2012, the City Council unanimously approved the Plan and related actions, following a unanimous 
recommendation for approval from the Planning Commission. The 356-page Specific Plan, filled with 
extensive new standards, guidelines, and illustrations, primarily replaced two zoning districts that together 
constituted slightly more than two pages of text in the Zoning Ordinance (which itself was last 
comprehensively revised in 1967). Full information on the Vision and Specific Plan projects (including staff 
reports, meeting video, environmental and fiscal review documents, analysis memos, and workshop 
presentations and summaries) is available on the City’s web site at: menlopark.org/specificplan.  
 
Initial Review (2013) 
The initial implementation of the ongoing review requirement occurred in 2013, one year after the Specific 
Plan’s adoption, at which point the Planning Commission and City Council received public input, discussed 
a wide range of options, and directed that staff prepare formal amendments for the following topics: 
 
 

PAGE 48



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

1. Revise text to clarify that implementation of the “Burgess Park Linkage/Open Space Plaza” public 
space improvement is not dependent on the High Speed Rail project; 

2. Eliminate “Platinum LEED (Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design) Certified Buildings” as a 
suggested Public Benefit Bonus element; and  

3. For new medical/dental office uses on El Camino Real, establish an absolute maximum of 33,333 
square feet per development project.  

 
Following that direction in late 2013, the Planning Division had a number of staffing changes that delayed 
work on the Specific Plan amendments, but the formal revisions were presented and approved in October 
2014, and are currently in effect. 
 
Biennial Review (2015) 
The current review commenced with the Planning Commission conducting a regular business session on 
the topic on August 3, 2015. The approved meeting minutes are included as Attachment A. 
Correspondence submitted in advance of the meeting are included as Attachment B. The Planning 
Commission’s recommendations are discussed throughout the Analysis section. 

 
Analysis 
Ongoing Review Requirement 
The approved Specific Plan requires the following as part of Chapter G (“Implementation”): 
 

Ongoing Review of Specific Plan 
The Specific Plan constitutes a significant and complex revision of the existing regulations, and there 
may be aspects of the plan that do not function precisely as intended when applied to actual future 
development proposals and public improvement projects. In order to address such issues 
comprehensively, as well as to consider the policy-related implications of various Plan aspects, the 
Specific Plan recommends that the City conduct an initial review of the Specific Plan one year after 
adoption. In addition, the Specific Plan recommends that the City conduct an ongoing review every two 
years after the initial review. Such reviews should be conducted with both the Planning Commission 
and City Council, and should incorporate public input. Any modifications that result from this review 
should be formally presented for Planning Commission review and City Council action. Minor technical 
modifications would generally be anticipated to be covered by the current Program EIR analysis, while 
substantive changes not covered by the Program EIR would require additional review. 

 
As described by the Specific Plan, the ongoing review is neither explicitly focused nor limited in scope. 
However, the term “review” itself provides some guidance, in contrast to more active terms like “reconsider” 
or “reopen.” In addition, the reference to whether the Specific Plan is functioning as intended implies that 
aspects that were clearly discussed (and in many cases, modified from initial drafts) during earlier reviews 
should not necessarily be revisited in perpetuity.  
 
Maximum Allowable Development and Recent/Current Development Proposals  
The Specific Plan establishes a maximum allowable net new development cap, which is intended to reflect 
likely development over the Specific Plan’s intended 20- to 30-year timeframe. Development in excess of 
these thresholds requires amending the Specific Plan and conducting additional environmental review. 
Specifically, the approved Specific Plan states the following as part of Chapter G (“Implementation”): 
 

Maximum Allowable Development 
The Specific Plan establishes the maximum allowable net new development as follows: 
 

PAGE 49



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
• Residential uses: 680 units; and 
• Non-residential uses, including retail, office and hotel: 474,000 Square Feet. 
 
The Specific Plan divides the maximum allowable development between residential and non-
residential uses as shown, recognizing the particular impacts from residential development (e.g., on 
schools and parks) while otherwise allowing market forces to determine the final combination of 
development types over time. 
 
The Planning Division shall at all times maintain a publicly available record of: 
 
• The total amount of allowable residential units and non-residential square footage under the 

Specific Plan, as provided above; 
• The total number of residential units and non-residential square footage for which entitlements and 

building permits have been granted; 
• The total number of residential units and non-residential square footage removed due to building 

demolition; and 
• The total allowable number of residential units and non-residential square footage remaining 

available. 
 
The Planning Division shall provide the Planning Commission and City Council with yearly 
informational updates of this record. After the granting of entitlements or building permits for 80 
percent or more of either the maximum residential units or maximum non-residential square footage, 
the Community Development Director will report to the City Council. The Council would then consider 
whether it wished to consider amending the Plan and completing the required environmental review, or 
the Council could choose to make no changes in the Plan. Any development proposal that would result 
in either more residences or more commercial development than permitted by the Specific Plan would 
be required to apply for an amendment to the Specific Plan and complete the necessary environmental 
review. 

 
The biennial review provides an opportunity for an informational update regarding these development 
thresholds. The project summary table included as Attachment C represents a summary of applications 
with square footage implications that have been submitted since the Specific Plan became effective. This 
table does not include applications that only affect the exterior aesthetics of an existing structure. For 
example, an architectural refresh of the exterior of the building at 1090 El Camino Real (former BBC) was 
approved in February 2014 as part of a new restaurant use, where existing square footage was 
reallocated between floors but no net new square footage was proposed. In addition, the table does not 
include proposals that have not yet submitted a complete project application. For example, two new 
mixed-use concepts at 706 Santa Cruz Avenue (Union Bank/Juban/Manny’s Children’s Shoes) and 115 El 
Camino Real (Stanford Inn) are currently being contemplated, and the respective owners have submitted 
fee deposits to enable pre-application inquiries and meetings with staff. However, full project plans and 
other required application elements have not yet been submitted for those potential projects.  
As was the case at the initial review in 2013, the Specific Plan area still has not yet benefitted from 
significant redevelopment. The 612 College Avenue project is the only completely new project to receive 
both discretionary entitlements and building permits, and it is limited in scale at four dwelling units.  Since 
the 2013 review, seven new projects have been submitted, all of which include comprehensive site 
redevelopment.   Of these seven, four are proposed at the Base density level and three are proposed at 
the Public Benefit Bonus level. For the three projects proposed at the Public Benefit Bonus level, Planning 
Commission study sessions have thus far been held for 650 Live Oak Avenue and 1020 Alma Street. (The 
Public Benefit Bonus topic is also discussed in a following section.)  

PAGE 50



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Process Improvements 
As individual projects have been reviewed, staff identified a need to assist applicants with the significantly 
more detailed requirements of the Specific Plan, including associated CEQA (California Environmental 
Quality Act) mitigations. In response, staff has created a Development Guide section of the Specific Plan 
project page: menlopark.org/956/Development-Guide 
 
This page describes application submittal requirements, including the Standards/Guidelines Compliance 
Worksheet that is necessary to confirm adherence to the Plan’s detailed design requirements, and 
identifies typical fees and other unique requirements of development in this area. Staff has also instituted 
a requirement for a staff-level pre-application design meeting, to ensure that applicants understand key 
requirements (e.g., the Major Vertical Façade Modulation standard), prior to locking in other aspects of the 
proposal. Staff has received positive feedback so far from applicants on the Development Guide and the 
pre-application design meeting. 
 
Green Building Certification Update 
Specific Plan Standard E.3.8.03 requires that all residential and/or mixed use developments of sufficient 
size, and major alterations of existing buildings be certified at the LEED Silver level or higher. In 
accordance with the Specific Plan, verification of attainment of LEED Silver level or higher may be 
achieved through LEED certification through the United States Green Building Council (USGBC) or 
through a City-approved outside auditor. Currently, projects are required to obtain certification through the 
USGBC as the City does not have an outside auditor program in place.  
 
As part of the ongoing effort to identify ways to streamline the review process, staff from the Planning and 
Environmental Programs Divisions explored the possibility of setting up a City-approved outside auditor 
program, with the intent that the auditor program could result in potential cost and time savings as 
compared to review and certification through the USGBC. In the course of gathering information, it 
became apparent that the outside auditor program could incur similar costs and require similar review 
timelines as the USGBC certification process. Furthermore, the outside auditor program would likely 
require additional staff resources to oversee its implementation. As there does not appear to be any cost 
or time savings through setting up an outside auditor program, staff has determined that it would not be 
advantageous to pursue this option at this time. 
 
Public Space Projects and Events 
Although the focus of this report is on private development projects and associated regulations, the 
Biennial Review also provides an opportunity to discuss public space improvements in the Specific Plan 
area. Since the adoption of the Specific Plan, the City Council has considered such projects on an ongoing 
basis through the yearly Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) process, including the following: 
 
• Chestnut Street Paseo: The City recently conducted a six-week trial of this downtown park, following 

on earlier one-off events (e.g., 2014 State of the City). The pilot implementation included programmed 
events like the Menlo Movie Series, which was well attended. Staff will be gathering feedback to inform 
whether/how to implement such an improvement on a more permanent basis. 

• Santa Cruz Street Café Pilot Program: Staff is in the process of implementing a program for 
businesses to utilize parking in front of their business for seating or other amenities in partnership with 
the City. A consultant has developed a prototype base design that can be easily adapted to the parallel 
and angled parking configurations present downtown, and staff is evaluating applications by 
businesses to take part in this program. 

• El Camino Real Corridor Study: This project is considering potential transportation and safety 
improvements to El Camino Real. In response to recent City Council direction, the Transportation 

PAGE 51

http://www.menlopark.org/956/Development-Guide


Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Division is preparing a proposal for a one-year trial of a bike facility, to be considered by the Council in 
the coming months. 

 
In addition, the City has supported a number of special events in the Specific Plan area, with the goal of 
increasing activity and vibrancy. For example, existing events like the Downtown Block Party and 
Connoisseurs’ Marketplace have been joined by the new Off the Grid food truck market and Family 
Fitness Extravaganza.  
 
Public Benefit Bonus Review 
The Specific Plan established two tiers of development: 1) Base: Intended to inherently address key 
community goals, and 2) Public Benefit Bonus: Absolute maximums subject to provision of negotiated 
public benefit. The Public Benefit Bonus process, including background on how the structured negotiation 
process was selected relative to other procedural options, is described on Specific Plan pages E16-E17. 
In general, the Plan was developed under the assumption that most development proposals would be at 
the Base level, with requirements set up to achieve intrinsic benefits and greater certainty for both the 
community and applicants. However, the Specific Plan allowed for a limited set of uniquely-positive 
proposals to be considered under the structured Public Benefit Bonus process. 
 
A small Public Benefit Bonus was granted for one Specific Plan proposal, a unique hotel conversion 
project at 555 Glenwood Avenue, but otherwise this discretionary review process has not yet been fully 
conducted for any project. On May 18, 2015, the Planning Commission held study sessions on proposals 
at 650-660 Live Oak Avenue and 1020 Alma Street, which provided an opportunity to review the 
applicants’ respective proposals and consider an independent financial analysis performed by a consultant 
overseen by staff. 
 
For the August 3 Planning Commission meeting, Commissioners Kadvany and Onken submitted a 
presentation regarding a potential change to how Public Benefit Bonus projects could be valued, which is 
included as Attachment C. Commissioner Kadvany discussed the concepts in more detail at that meeting. 
The proposal would not require modifications to the Specific Plan itself, but rather could be a change to 
how the existing case-by-case Public Benefit Bonus review is implemented. Specifically, the existing ‘pro 
forma’ comparison could be supplemented by an additional analysis of the cost of the extra land that 
would conceptually be needed to achieve the higher Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of the Public Benefit Bonus 
level development. The Planning Commission as a group did not recommend that such analyses be 
included with future Public Benefit Bonus proposals, although individual Commissioners could bring such 
estimates forward for discussion/consideration.  
 
During the August 3 meeting, the Planning Commission in general expressed discomfort/uncertainty with 
the Public Benefit Bonus process, with some individual Commissioners requesting that the City Council 
provide more clarity on the topic. As noted earlier, the Specific Plan’s Public Benefit Bonus process was 
established to be a relatively unique occurrence, with most development proposed at the Base level 
(where it creates intrinsic benefits). For the Specific Plan, greater clarity on the Public Benefit Bonus topic 
could encourage a greater amount of proposals at the higher level, which could result in the Maximum 
Allowable Development cap(s) being reached more quickly than anticipated. Staff believes that some of 
the Planning Commission’s lack of comfort with this topic so far may be more the result of underwhelming 
benefit proposals from applicants, rather than a fundamental issue with the process itself. Regardless, the 
City Council should note that other public benefit programs (such as for the in-progress General Plan 
update) can be set up in alternate ways, which may allow greater specificity/certainty. 
 
Options for Specific Plan Modifications 
The City Council may consider a range of options, from making limited/no changes to the Specific Plan, to 

PAGE 52



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

embarking on a completely new multi-year community planning project. As the Council considers potential 
changes to the Specific Plan, staff recommends keeping in mind: 
 
• What is the basis for the proposed change? In particular, based on the projects that have been 

approved and/or proposed since the Specific Plan was adopted, why is the change warranted? 
• How would the change support the overall project objectives (Vision Plan Goals + Specific Plan 

Guiding Principles)? A modification may appear to enhance one goal/principle when viewed in isolation, 
but not when considered in relation to all objectives. 

• Within the Specific Plan itself, would the change have any ripple effects for other aspects of the Plan? 
Many elements are interrelated, and what appears to be a small positive change in one area could 
have negative consequences for another part of the Specific Plan. 

• Was the change previously considered during the Specific Plan development process? If so, is there 
substantive new information justifying the change? 

• Could the change affect the Housing Element, the in-progress General Plan update, or other City 
plans/projects? 

 
Recommended Modifications 
As noted in the Specific Plan’s “Ongoing Review” section, the Plan is a significant and complex revision of 
the regulations that previously applied, and there may be unanticipated consequences in how different 
requirements interact with each other or different development sites. As actual project proposals have 
been considered, staff has noted several topics that may warrant formal modification. The following list 
summarizes the issue and relevant case(s) and identifies the general direction of the recommended 
change. However, staff is not necessarily specifying detailed revisions at this stage, in order to allow for a 
range of solutions to be considered. 
 
The following staff recommendations were supported by the Planning Commission. As a result of this 
consensus, staff has not modified the recommendations substantially since the August 3 meeting. 
 
1. Rear Setback: Specific Plan Figure E7 clearly relays setback requirements for front and corner side 

setbacks. However, in districts where a rear setback applies (for example, the ECR SW and ECR NE-
R districts, which adjoin lower-density residential districts and which have such setbacks to provide an 
appropriate transition), a parcel’s orientation may make it unclear where the rear setback applies. For 
example, an initial concept for the 612 College Avenue proposal made an incorrect assumption as to 
the location of the rear of the property, as the parcel’s primary usable front is located perpendicular to 
the Specific Plan area boundary. That proposal was corrected, but new text and a basic summary 
graphic could help relay that the rear setback applies to the boundary between a Specific Plan parcel 
and an adjacent residential area. This concept was identified during the 2013 initial review as 
something that could potentially be addressed in a clarification/interpretation memo, but staff now 
believes that it would be best incorporated into the Specific Plan itself. 

 
2. Maximum Setbacks: The Zoning Ordinance has long had minimum setback requirements, but the 

Specific Plan also introduced new standards for maximum front and interior side setbacks, which are 
intended to ensure a consistent building form in this area. Staff believes the maximum front and side 
setbacks are working as intended with regard to urban design, but has identified an issue with how the 
maximum front and side setbacks interact with other portions of the Zoning Ordinance to create 
unintended consequences. Specifically, during review of the 1020 Alma Street project (still under 
consideration), the applicant and staff determined that the maximum side setback standard (25 feet) 
would require the removal of a heritage tree on one side of the property, which was not the preference 
of the applicant or staff. In concept, this initially seemed like an opportunity to consider a variance due 
to the unique hardship of the heritage tree location. However, variances are limited to no more than 50 

PAGE 53



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

percent of the standard in question, which for this project means that a 37.5-foot setback is the 
maximum that could be requested, which is still not sufficient to preserve this tree. For the 1020 Alma 
Street proposal specifically, staff has identified a potential workaround for a tree protection easement, 
which would permit the building setback to be measured from the easement edge, but this is not 
necessarily an ideal solution for all projects. At the August 3rd Planning Commission meeting, staff had 
only contemplated potential conflicts with the side setback standard, however, since that meeting, the 
1704 El Camino Real project (Red Cottage Inn) has brought to light the potential for conflicts with the 
front setback standard as well. Early designs for the redevelopment of 1704 El Camino Real (currently 
being contemplated) has shown that the front setback standard would potentially impede the site’s 
ability to comply with emergency access requirements and the preservation of existing heritage trees 
due to the site’s unique configuration. As a result, staff is recommending that the Specific Plan (and/or 
the Zoning Ordinance) be amended to specify that the 50 percent limit no longer apply to the maximum 
front and side setback requirements. If approved, such a change would potentially enable other 
projects to preserve heritage trees or address other unique site conditions, subject to case-by-case 
variance review. 

 
3. Sidewalks: The Specific Plan currently requires 11- to 15-foot wide sidewalks along most public right-

of-ways, where 15 feet is typically required east of El Camino Real and 11 to 12 feet is typically 
required west of El Camino Real. The Specific Plan is silent on the sidewalk requirements on some 
side streets, such as Glenwood Avenue within the ECR NE (El Camino Real North-East) and ECR NE-
R (El Camino Real North-East – Residential Emphasis) districts, as well as a few others within the 
Specific Plan area. These appear to be accidental omissions. The proposed hotel project at 1400 El 
Camino Real (still under consideration), located at the corner of El Camino Real and Glenwood 
Avenue, is directly affected by the lack of clear sidewalk standards along Glenwood Avenue. For this 
project, staff has been working with the applicant to determine the appropriate sidewalk width in 
consideration of a unique addition of a right turn pocket that would be required along the site’s 
Glenwood Avenue frontage. However, in order to provide clarity on the sidewalk requirements for 
future projects along the omitted streets, staff recommends amending the development standards in 
the affected Specific Plan zoning districts to include sidewalk standards for all streets that currently do 
not have such standards. Existing sidewalk standards would remain unchanged. Staff anticipates that 
the recommended sidewalk widths would fall within the current range of 11 to 15 feet. 

 
4. Personal Improvement Services Parking Rate: Specific Plan Table F2 establishes the parking rates for 

residential and commercial uses most frequently occurring within the Specific Plan area. One use for 
which staff has received regular inquiries is personal improvement services, which is defined as 
follows: 
 
Provision of instructional services or related facilities, including photography, fine arts, crafts, dance, or 
music studios; driving schools; and diet centers, reducing salons, spas, and single-purpose fitness 
studios, such as yoga studios or aerobics studios. This classification is intended for more small-scale 
storefront locations and is distinguishable from small-scale commercial recreation uses that tend to 
occupy larger sites and generate more noise. 
 
Personal improvement services are permitted in all Specific Plan land use designations, subject to 
restrictions in most designations, including limitations on the size of individual establishments (i.e., no 
more than 5,000 square feet in the El Camino Real Mixed Use/Residential, Downtown/Station Area 
Retail/Mixed Use, and Downtown Adjacent Office/Residential land use designations) or location (i.e., 
allowed only on the upper floors within the Downtown/Station Area Main Street Overlay). Overall, 
personal improvement services offer community-serving amenities, and many establishments have the 
ability to exert some control over its parking demand through appointment-based and/or regularly 

PAGE 54



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

scheduled services. As there is no established parking rate for personal improvement service uses, 
any such use proposing to occupy a tenant space that previously had a non-personal-improvement 
(which is most often the case) currently triggers the need for a parking analysis to evaluate parking 
demand and any potential parking impacts. Such parking analyses are reviewed by Transportation 
Division staff on a case-by-case basis. Case-by-case review is time-consuming for staff and results in 
uncertainty for potential applicants. Staff recommends the establishment of a parking rate for personal 
improvement services to streamline review of these uses. 

 
5. Transportation Demand Management Programs: The Specific Plan EIR Mitigation Measure TR-2 

requires new developments to have a City-approved Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 
program in place prior to project occupancy in order to mitigate traffic impacts on roadway segments 
and intersections. In implementing this requirement, the Transportation Division applies a methodology 
outlined in the City’s TDM Guidelines, which is consistent with those adopted by the San Mateo 
City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG), the Congestion Management Agency for San 
Mateo County. The Guidelines provide a framework in which to determine if a combination of 
acceptable options/measures will result in sufficient trip “credits” to reduce the net number of new trips 
on the City’s circulation network anticipated to be generated by the proposed project. While the TDM 
Guidelines have been adopted by the City Council, the City’s TDM program objective/criteria of 
attaining sufficient trip credits to account for all net new trips is not currently formally documented 
under Mitigation Measure TR-2. In order to provide clarification on the implementation of Mitigation 
Measure TR-2, staff recommends formalizing the City’s TDM program criteria as part of this mitigation 
measure.  

 
6. Electric Vehicle Recharging Stations: As part of Specific Plan Standard E.3.8.03, all residential and/or 

mixed use developments of sufficient size are required to install dedicated electric vehicle/plug-in 
hybrid electric vehicle recharging stations. This requirement currently does not extend to any 
commercial-only developments, such as the proposed 1020 Alma Street office project. Installation of 
electric vehicle recharging stations encourages the use of low/zero emissions, fuel-efficient vehicles 
through improving the vehicle recharging infrastructure network, and is one of the strategies identified 
in the Climate Action Plan to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Staff recommends the 
modification of Standard E.3.8.03 to extend the requirement for installation of electric vehicle 
recharging stations to include commercial-only developments. As part of this suggestion, staff will 
review other standard requirements (e.g. CALGreen) to make sure that any new Specific Plan 
standards would not be inconsistent/duplicative.  

 
The following staff recommendations were not supported by a majority of the Planning Commission. Staff 
has added some additional context/discussion for the City Council’s consideration. 
 
7. Hotel Parking Rate: Specific Plan Table F2 establishes a single parking rate for hotels of 1.25 spaces 

per room. This parking rate is based on hotels with supporting facilities that are publicly accessible, 
such as conference rooms, restaurants, bars, and independent health club facilities. During review of 
the 555 Glenwood Avenue (Marriott Residence Inn) and 727 El Camino Real (Mermaid Inn), both of 
which are approved, staff determined that these hotel uses are materially distinct from the Specific 
Plan’s listed hotel rate due to limited provision of publicly-accessible support facilities. Similarly, the 
boutique hotel project at 1400 El Camino Real, which is currently under review, also proposes partially 
limited support facilities. For all three hotel projects, the Transportation Manager has indicated that it 
would be appropriate to apply a lower parking rate for limited-service hotel uses. The continued 
application of a reduced parking rate appropriate for similar limited-service hotel use does not require 
any change to the Specific Plan (the Transportation Manager is allowed to approve a rate for a use 
type not listed in Table F2), but a more formal clarification would benefit potential applicants proposing 

PAGE 55



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

similar hotel types. The recently adopted Economic Development Plan includes recommendations to 
encourage hotel development in order to grow and diversify the City’s revenue source. Staff 
recommended to the Planning Commission that lower parking rates for limited-service hotel uses be 
formalized to better reflect actual parking needs, as well as to encourage hotel development. Reducing 
the parking requirement for limited-service hotel developments would incentivize this use by reducing 
overall costs associated with development. 
 
At the August 3 meeting, the Planning Commission expressed concern about a strict change to the 
hotel rate, in particular as it might relate to a hotel developer receiving a lower parking rate for limited 
amenities/events, but then later adding such features/activities to the facility. However, the Planning 
Commission stated that the existing case-by-case review of alternate hotel parking rates is still 
acceptable. In response, instead of new limited-service hotel parking rate, staff is now recommending 
that the hotel parking requirement be expressed as a range (likely between 0.8 and 1.25 spaces per 
room), with a note that the determination would be made as part of the overall project approval. Staff 
believes this would address the Planning Commission’s concern, while also signaling to hotel 
developers that the current 1.25 spaces per room standard isn’t the only option. 
 

8. Additional Parking Reductions for Mixed-Use Projects in the Station Area Sphere of Influence: As 
noted above, the Specific Plan specifies parking rates for different uses via Table F2. In addition, the 
Specific Plan allows for Shared Parking Reductions throughout the Plan area, subject a published 
Urban Land Institute (ULI) methodology. Such reductions are typically applied to projects with uses 
that have peak demand at different times. For example, office uses have highest use during weekdays, 
so they can align well with residential uses, which require more use at night and on weekends. No 
project has yet been approved with a Shared Parking Reduction, although the 1300 El Camino Real 
proposal may include such an element. Staff believes the Shared Parking Reduction allowance is 
worth retaining, but identified potential room for improvement during initial review of the 1020 Alma 
Street project. Specifically, that project is currently proposed as a primarily office proposal with a small 
food service kiosk. During the project’s study session, individual Planning Commissioners inquired 
about the potential for a more robust retail component, since the project has excess Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR) that conceptually could be used for that purpose. The applicant responded that they are limited 
by the site constraints and parking requirements, and that the Shared Parking Reduction wouldn’t 
allow for a significant improvement, since retail and office have similar peak demand times. As a result, 
staff recommended to the Planning Commission that additional flexibility be allowed for parking ratios 
to be reduced for mixed-use projects in the “Station Area Sphere of Influence” (see Specific Plan 
Figure F5, page F21). This would enable case-by-case review of parking demand in the Plan area best 
served by transit, and could help incentivize retail/restaurant/personal service uses. The reductions 
would not be allowed for single-use proposals, so office-only projects would not necessarily be 
encouraged. Such a revision could help support a recommendation of the Economic Development 
Plan to relax on-site parking requirements for new development in areas well-served by transit, in 
order to activate downtown. 
 
At the August 3 meeting, a Planning Commission “straw poll” regarding this recommendation failed on 
a 3-4 vote (Commissioners Combs, Ferrick, and Goodhue in support; Commissioners Kadvany, Kahle, 
Onken, and Strehl in opposition). Staff still considers the recommendation a potentially positive way to 
encourage mixed-use projects in the areas closest to the Caltrain station. 

 
Staff believes that all of the recommended changes, because they support existing core principles of the 
Plan and require limited graphical changes, could be accomplished through a “modest modification” of the 
Specific Plan. The Specific Plan was adopted by resolution of the City Council, following 
review/recommendation by the Planning Commission. Specific Plan amendments can be conducted 

PAGE 56



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

following the same general procedure. City Council Resolutions require a majority action of the Council 
Members present and eligible to vote. 
 
These types of changes would require some level of CEQA consideration, but based on the experience 
with the amendments conducted in 2014, staff believes they could take the form of a Negative Declaration, 
which has limited noticing and circulation requirements relative to an EIR. CEQA options are also 
discussed in a following section. 
 
Staff believes that modest modifications could potentially occur within an approximately five- to seven-
month timeframe, following City Council recommendation on the overall direction. This process would 
include: 
 
• Refinement of the Commission/Council’s direction (wording, etc.) 
• Draft revisions of the Specific Plan document 
• Environmental Review 
• Planning Commission meeting (with public notice) 
• City Council meeting (with public notice) 
• Final revisions of the Specific Plan document, including web posting and printing 
 
During this time, development proposals would remain under consideration, with the existing Specific Plan 
in effect.  
 
Potential Specific Plan changes that would affect multiple graphics and/or revisit core principles of the 
Plan, such as changes to FAR standards, would require a more extensive process, and would be 
considered a “major modification”. Such major Plan revisions would likely require specialized services for 
graphics and potentially additional environmental review. Such a process could also include an iterative, 
public process that allows for more careful and comprehensive consideration of options, which would 
appear appropriate given that the Specific Plan itself was developed through a community-oriented, 
transparent process. In general, staff believes that major modifications to the Specific Plan could take 
upwards of 12 months to complete, and would likely affect other plans/projects, with regard to staff and 
Commission/Council resources.  
 
Correspondence   
In addition to the correspondence received in advance of the earlier Planning Commission meeting 
(Attachment B), staff has received one additional piece of correspondence from Pollock Financial Group 
(Attachment D), the applicant for the proposed hotel development at 1400 El Camino Real, with a request 
for additional modifications to the Specific Plan. Staff has only had limited time to consider the requests in 
the letter and provide general comment on the proposal. The specific proposals are summarized below. 
1. Modify the gross floor area calculation for small hotels to allow “back-of-house” supporting uses 

located in basement areas to be excluded from the allowable gross floor area calculation. According to 
Pollock Financial Group’s letter, “back-of-house” uses are described as areas “not accessible to hotel 
guests including storage areas, mechanical equipment enclosures, employee lockers, employee break 
rooms, employee restrooms, maintenance and repair shops, janitors’ closets, and laundry facilities.”  

 
2. Modify the major vertical façade modulation requirement with respect to when this requirement is 

triggered, and to provide flexibility on how this requirement could be met on smaller sites.  Pollock 
Financial Group proposes several potential revisions geared towards hardships for development on 
smaller sites, including the following: 

• Requiring the modulation to be extended through a portion of the façade, rather than through the full 
height of the building; 

PAGE 57



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• Increasing the allowable maximum side yard setback in order to reduce overall building façade lengths, 
thus avoiding triggering the modulation requirement; 

• Allowing a change in building materials for a 20-foot width instead of requiring the façade to be 
recessed; and, 

• Allowing facades exceeding 100 feet in length to comply with either the major or minor modulation 
requirement, but not both. 

 
With regards to modifying the gross floor area calculation, in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance’s 
definition for “gross floor area” (GFA), back-of-house areas currently contribute towards the allowable GFA 
for the site, with the exception of mechanical equipment enclosures which may be eligible for exclusion. 
The current definition was developed through an extensive public process, culminating in a definition 
which reflected the community’s desire to clearly identify areas that need to be counted. The maximum 
allowable development limit established under the Specific Plan was based on the current GFA definition. 
Modifications to the current definition as requested could potentially result in more areas devoted to back-
of-house spaces that could in turn support more guest rooms and/or “front of house” operations, resulting 
in a higher intensity of use. In essence, any modifications to the GFA definition could require a re-
evaluation of the basis upon which the Specific Plan build-out was analyzed. Furthermore, the GFA 
definition is currently applied citywide and is not unique to the Specific Plan area.  

 
If revised, it could potentially have ripple effects for development throughout the city. Although a revised 
GFA definition could be limited to the Specific Plan area and could potentially limit impacts, this would 
result in different definitions throughout the City. In recent years the City has been working to create more 
consistency in ordinance definitions and regulations to facilitate their use by the development community. 
Staff believes that the proposed definition change could constitute a major revision that could likely require 
additional analysis, public input, and environmental review. 

 
With regards to modifying the major vertical façade modulation requirement, this requirement is intended 
to provide vertical modulation that would break up “long stretches of continuous or monotonous street 
frontage and to provide visual interest.” Specific Plan Standard E.3.4.2.02 requires a major vertical façade 
modulation for every building façade length of 100 feet facing public rights-of-way, where the modulation 
shall have a recess from the primary building façade of a minimum of 6 feet deep by 20 feet wide. The 
modulation is required to extend through the full height of the building, coupled with a 4-foot height 
modulation and changes in fenestration pattern, building material, and/or color. Contrary to the argument 
that smaller sites should receive some relief from the requirement, staff believes that creating a vertical 
break in the façade takes on greater relevance when it comes to providing visual relief for taller buildings 
on small sites. To date, other approved and pending developments on similarly small sites within the 
Specific Plan area have been able to successfully comply with the modulation requirements. In reviewing 
the project plans for the 1400 El Camino Real project, staff believes that a minor revision to the proposed 
hotel design could effectively bring the project into compliance with the modulation requirement. Since the 
design standards of the Specific Plan are intricately linked to one another, staff believes that changes to 
any one of those standards could constitute a major modification that could trigger the need for re-
evaluation of design standards, text and graphics changes in the document, and potential environmental 
review. 
 
Staff believes that individually and cumulatively, the changes requested by Pollock Financial Group could 
constitute major revisions that could require staff resources and time to process, as well as consultant 
services related to graphics changes in the Specific Plan and possible environmental review. As staff 
continues to work with the applicant to process the proposed 1400 El Camino Real project expeditiously, it 
is anticipated that the timing of the proposed Specific Plan revisions would not likely be completed in time 
to benefit the hotel development. 

PAGE 58



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Conclusion 
Staff believes the proposed Specific Plan changes as recommended by staff would provide clarification on 
how specific aspects would be implemented, and would constitute modest modifications to the Specific 
Plan. The proposed modifications are based on experiences with actual project proposals. The proposed 
changes requested by Pollock Financial Group could require re-evaluation of fundamental assumptions 
and standards as established through the Specific Plan process. Staff recommends that the City Council 
provide direction on the proposed changes. The City Council may also consider whether to recommend 
additional modifications to the Specific Plan and/or its implementation procedures. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
As part of the Specific Plan adoption, an El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Preparation Fee was 
approved. This fee is charged to projects adding square footage, to recover the costs associated with the 
preparation of the Specific Plan. 
 
Staff believes the work required for the Specific Plan modifications recommended by staff could likely be 
absorbed within the Community Development Department budget, although it would affect somewhat the 
Planning Division’s ability to address other projects and plans. This determination assumes that the 
Planning Division is able to successfully recruit and hire for a number of approved positions that are 
currently vacant. These modifications would require some consultant services to format the changes into 
the graphically-unique Specific Plan, but these are likely to be absorbed into existing consultant services 
budgets. 
 
The work required for more significant modifications to the Specific Plan, such as those requested by 
Pollock Financial Group, could require consideration of a new budget appropriation for more significant 
technical consultant services, as well as more formal direction from the Council on how the revisions relate 
to other priorities of the Planning Division. 

 
Environmental Review 
Specific Plan Program EIR 
The Specific Plan process included detailed review of projected environmental impacts through a program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In 
compliance with CEQA requirements, the Draft EIR was released in April 2011, with a public comment 
period that closed in June 2011. The Final EIR, incorporating responses to Draft EIR comments, as well 
as text changes to parts of the Draft EIR itself, was released in April 2012, and certified along with the final 
Plan approvals in June 2012. 
 
Project-Level Review under the Specific Plan 
As specified in the Specific Plan EIR and the CEQA Guidelines, program EIRs provide the initial 
framework for review of discrete projects. Aside from smaller projects that are categorically exempt from 
CEQA and require no further analysis (for example, the four-unit 612 College Avenue proposal), most new 
proposals are required to be analyzed with regard to whether they would have impacts not examined in 
the program EIR. This typically takes the form of a checklist that analyzes the project in relation to each 
environmental category in appropriate detail. Depending on the results of such analysis, the City could 
determine that the program EIR adequately considered the project, or the City could determine that 
additional environmental review is required. For example, the 1300 El Camino Real project is conducting a 
project-level EIR for certain topics that were not fully analyzed in the program EIR. 
 

PAGE 59



Staff Report #: 15-150-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Regardless of the CEQA review process, all projects must incorporate feasible mitigation measures 
included in the Specific Plan EIR’s Mitigation Monitoring Program. Examples of such mitigations include: 
 
• Payment of fees for transportation improvements; 
• Incorporation of Transportation Demand Management (TDM) programs; 
• Surveys and avoidance programs for special-status animal species; and 
• Training programs and protection measures for archaeological resources. 
 
CEQA Requirements for Potential Changes to the Specific Plan 
As noted earlier, potential changes to the Specific Plan would require consideration under CEQA, although 
this may vary based on the nature and extent of the changes. Based on the experience with the 2014 
changes, staff believes that the currently-recommended revisions could potentially be considered under a 
Negative Declaration process, as a result of their nature as enhancements to existing Plan objectives. 
However, this is not certain until the required Initial Study is conducted. More substantive changes to the 
Specific Plan, in particular those that could potentially intensify environmental impacts, could require a 
more extensive review process. 

 
Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Planning Commission August 3, 2015 Meeting Minutes 
B. Planning Commission August 3, 2015 Meeting Correspondence  
C. El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Project Summary – September 2015 
D. Letter from Camas Steinmetz, dated September 28, 2015 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Jean Lin, Associate Planner; Thomas Rogers, Interim Principal Planner  
 
 
 
 

PAGE 60



Planning Commission 

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - EXCERPT 

Date: 8/3/2015 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Chair Onken called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

Present: Combs, Ferrick, Goodhue, Kadvany, Kahle, Onken (Chair), Strehl (Vice Chair) 
Staff: Thomas Rogers, Senior Planner, Jean Lin, Associate Planner, Michele T. Morris, Associate 
Planner 

A. Reports and Announcements 
Senior Planner Rogers said the September 21 Planning Commission meeting would focus on the 
General Plan and the environmental impact review scoping session. He said the City Council 
would meet on August 25 and tentatively were scheduled to consider the El Camino Real Corridor 
Study and receive the Planning Commission’s and Bicycle and Transportation Commission’s 
recommendations on that with the expectation they would select a preferred alternative for action.  

E. Regular Business 

E1. El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan/Biennial Review:  Ongoing evaluation of the El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, which was approved in 2012. As specified by Chapter G 
(“Implementation”), the Planning Commission and City Council will conduct an initial review of the 
Plan one year after adoption (2013), with ongoing review at two-year intervals thereafter. This 
review is intended to ensure that the Plan is functioning as intended, as well as to consider the 
policy-related implications of various Plan aspects. Depending on the results of the review, 
potential modifications may be formally presented for Planning Commission recommendation and 
City Council action at subsequent meetings. Any such modifications may require additional review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  (Staff Report # 15-008-PC) 

Staff Comment:  Senior Planner Rogers said correspondence received had been sent to the 
Commissioners via email and hard copies were provided this evening for the Commission and 
members of the public.   

Planner Lin said this was a required ongoing review of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan (Plan). She said the initial one-year review conducted in 2013 has led into reviewing the Plan 
every two years.  She said since the implementation of the Plan, several public space 
improvements had occurred or were in the process of being implemented such as the Off the Grid 
Food Truck events at the Caltrain station parking lot, the Santa Cruz Avenue Sidewalk Café Pilot 
program, the outdoor movie events on the Chestnut paseo, and an upcoming September action to 
activate the Chestnut paseo space.  She said staff prepared a table of development projects 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 61

http://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/7789


Approved Minutes Page 2 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

approved, proposed and/or currently under review within the Plan area, which she briefly 
summarized.  She said staff was recommending several changes to clarify and streamline certain 
aspects of the Plan: under Development Standards including a recommendation to clarify the rear 
setback making it at the boundary of Plan district parcel with an adjacent residential district parcel 
to create a buffer zone; to allow a variance to the maximum side setback requirement in excess of 
50 percent of the requirement in order to address certain unique site conditions that staff saw in 
project reviews; and clarification of sidewalk standards along some of the side streets where there 
are no sidewalks currently.  She said staff also was recommending some transportation-related 
modifications including establishing a lower required parking rate for limited services hotel uses; 
establishing a parking rate for personal improvement services; allowing parking reductions to be 
considered for mixed use projects in the Station Area Sphere of Influence and close to transit; 
formalizing the City’s Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program criteria, and requiring 
electric charging stations for commercial projects.  She said those stations were now only required 
for residential and residential mixed-use projects.  She said the Commission was asked to review 
these recommendations and provide feedback on them to the City Council.  She said the City 
Council would next review these recommendations and the Commission’s feedback, and provide 
direction to staff.  She said staff would prepare analysis on the proposed changes including any 
changes to the Plan document and prepare environmental review.  She said this would 
subsequently be brought to the Commission for review and recommendation to the City Council 
after which the Council would review the proposed changes and the Commission’s 
recommendations.  She said the Plan documents would then be revised to include the approved 
changes. 
 
Commissioner Kahle asked about the 50% limit regarding the maximum side setback.  Senior 
Planner Rogers said under the City’s Ordinance Code a variance from the side setback 
requirement might be requested but for only up to 50% of the required setback.  He said the logic 
for that did not seem to apply well to what was more urban development in the Plan area, noting an 
instance where the 50% limit for side setback variance meant that half a healthy heritage tree 
would need to be removed if that limit were applied. 
 
Commissioner Goodhue asked about the requirement for electric charging stations.  Planner Lin 
said that mid-to-large-sized residential projects were required to have electric charging stations.  
She said these included new large commercial projects, 5,000 square feet or greater, new 
residential development, either single or duplex, new multi-family residential developments of three 
or more units, and new multi-building / one building development on one or more acres.  She said 
they would also be required for significant alterations of existing buildings.  She said at this time 
they were merely identifying an omission in terms of not having an electric charging station 
requirement for commercial development and it would have to be analyzed. 
 
Chair Onken asked about Calgreen requirements and electric charging stations.  Planner Lin said 
that Calgreen required a certain amount of parking spaces for clean fuel vehicles.  She said staff 
was made aware of recent legislation regarding electric charging stations.  She said they had not 
yet had time to look at those items in detail but would explore those provisions and requirements 
as part of the recommendation being made. 
 

PAGE 62



Approved Minutes Page 3 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

Commissioner Goodhue asked about Ms. Patti Fry’s correspondence and that there appeared to 
be a discrepancy in the project numbers.  Senior Planner Rogers said similar comments had been 
submitted previously and had been reviewed with other staff.  He said they looked at historical 
documents and discussed the topic with the City Attorney.  He said staff’s list of development 
projects was correct as far as could be determined.  He said the key area of disagreement was 
with how the Derry mixed used project was counted.  He said that project did not receive final 
approvals including CEQA and thus there were no credits to the current 1300 El Camino Real 
project from the Derry Lane portion.  He said there was a credit for the Sand Hill Property 
Company’s 1300 El Camino Real project that had been approved in 2009 with an approved 
environmental review.  He said that was deducted from the current Greenheart Station 1300 
project.  He said they have reviewed the information multiple times and staff believed the 
information was correct as presented.   
 
Commissioner Goodhue asked if the hotel on Glenwood Avenue was a limited service hotel 
without a restaurant.  Planner Lin said it was limited service with most of its services geared toward 
their guests.  She said although there was a restaurant, there were no extensive meeting or 
conference facilities. 
 
Commissioner Strehl said she recalled that the hotel proposal included hosting weddings and 
attracting dining customers.  Commissioner Goodhue said she thought there needed to be further 
investigation into the proposed hotel use at Glenwood and whether it was actually a limited service 
hotel. 
 
Public Benefit Presentation 
Commissioner Kadvany said he and Commissioner Onken had extensive discussions and emails 
about public benefit, and that he had spoken about this with local real estate brokers and 
developers.  He noted that their presentation was attached to the staff report as Attachment B.  He 
said they were suggesting in addition to the current analysis for determining public benefit another 
method of valuation to determine the cost of buildable square footage by right, and using that 
metric as a starting point for public benefit proposals.  He provided an example of how this would 
be calculated.  He said the suggested approach to use the buildable cost per square foot metric 
could be combined with a 50/50 sharing of FAR bonus value which represented the developer 
having a partner role with the city in the project.  He said this method could also be used with 
leased property.  He said this could be combined with the traditional method of determining public 
benefit, and was not meant as a decisive standard for determining public benefit but a starting 
point for benefit proposal considerations.  He said the developer then might propose other things 
about the project that provided pubic benefit such as hotel transient occupancy tax (TOT) and/or 
desirable retail frontage, affordable or senior housing, or companies providing tax/revenue benefits 
to the City.  He said another question was whether Planning Commission architectural and design 
decisions would be made before, in parallel with, or after negotiated public benefit.  He said the 
Plan EIR may have assumed a limited number of public benefit projects, and that too many benefit 
projects could exceed the caps, requiring a new EIR. 
 
Chair Onken said he would like to see a model for the determination of public benefit whereby 
Planning Commissioners did not haggle about money with applicants as he did not think that was 

PAGE 63



Approved Minutes Page 4 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

where Commissioners’ abilities lie or what they had been appointed to do.  He said ideally there 
would be a standard equation of some sort that staff was commissioned to use with the goal of a 
more transparent process for determining public benefit. 

 
Public Comment:  Ms. Patti Fry, Menlo Park, said she was a 24-year Menlo Park resident, had 
been involved in all stages of the Specific Plan development, and was a former Planning 
Commissioner.  She said the community came together during the visioning for the Plan with a 
strong desire to vitalize the El Camino Real corridor and downtown community.  She said the 
community accepted more height in exchange for more open space, and were willing to accept 
impacts that were not possible to mitigate because promises of benefits that included enhancing 
the public realm, creating a more active and vibrant downtown with a mix of retail, office and 
residential uses, and enhanced connectivity, walkability and healthy living were made.  She said 
the Plan was developed in the depth of the recession and based on a sense that the public benefit 
threshold had to be high to encourage development.  She said there was now a different economy.  
She asked the Commission to look at the Plan and how well it is working to the expectations of that 
time.  She said there was a perception that the City has lost retail and that was something that 
needed to be looked at as part of the Plan.  She said the open space offered by the Stanford 
project was balconies.  She said the key points for TDM were to be able to have mechanisms to 
manage the real impacts of growth.  She said many public improvements were expected in the first 
five years of Plan as part of the public benefit.  She said those were not done so they needed to be 
looked at so the promise of the Plan might be realized. 

 
Mr. Steve Pierce, Greenheart Land Company, said he appreciated the public benefit discussion.  
He said there was a desire for simplicity to determine public benefit and in other places that was a 
simple dollar amount.  He said the City was using a pro forma approach that was a more fine 
grained analysis.  He said what was being proposed by Commissioners Kadvany and Onken was 
somewhere in between.  He said the current method was accomplished by an independent 
consultant who did in depth analysis and took into consideration costs and revenues to determine 
the profit from a project and the additional profit relating to public benefit.  He said both the 
investors and the City were interested in that latter profit and how much value that created, which 
led to the question of how that would be split.  He said he thought it would be good to establish 
what that split would be and that could reduce the number of negotiating points earlier in the 
process.  He said the benefit of the more fine-grained analysis looked at the differences among 
projects.  He said for 1020 Alma Street that analysis found that the value of the additional square 
foot was $185 and in the same evening 650 Live Oak Avenue was considered and that dollar value 
went to $28 per square foot.  He said that was a huge difference because they were two very 
different projects.  He said the proposed method of determining public benefit included cost only for 
square footage at the base density.  He said Station 1300 was a poster child for why that would not 
work.  He said at their base density they would do an aboveground structure parking with about 
20% open space on the site.  He said at the public benefit density level parking would go 
underground with about 38% open space on the site.  He said that was a public benefit with a price 
tag of about $27 million to park the cars underground.  He said if that cost was not included in the 
calculation of public benefit such a project became infeasible.  He said the pro forma approach was 
really the only way to get at the wide variations. 

 

PAGE 64



Approved Minutes Page 5 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

Chair Onken closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission Comment:  Chair Onken suggested they review each item and close with the public 
benefit discussion.  

 
Commissioner Kadvany said related to the recommended modifications for parking that he 
appreciated a more flexible approach to parking and suggested staff might look at parking even 
more broadly, noting that what was proposed to be modified for parking was in response to certain 
projects.   
 
Rear Setback 
In response to a query from Chair Onken, Senior Planner Rogers said that the recommended 
modification for rear setbacks was identified in 2013 and at that time they pursued a remedy using 
what was named “Clarification and Interpretation Memo” and which was like an overlay to the Plan.  
He said that route made sense if no other changes were being proposed to the Plan.  He said the 
need to modify the rear setback came out of the 612 College Avenue project in that the lot was a 
much deeper than wide with the main frontage on College Avenue.  He said the original applicant 
made the assumption that the rear setback, which was the largest setback at 20 feet, applied to the 
functional rear of the property.  He said everything with the Plan including its EIR said the rear 
setback was where the Plan boundary touched a single-family or other sensitive residential 
property.  He said for the 612 College Avenue project, they were able to work the rear setback out 
to provide buffer to the R-1-U property to the left, but that a diagram and/or other changes in the 
Plan would assist in relaying that information to all applications. 
 
Side Setback 
Commissioner Combs referred to the recommendation regarding side setbacks and variance 
request and asked why the maximum side setback could not be changed instead.  Senior Planner 
Rogers said the maximum side setbacks were intended to create a consistent street presence of 
buildings.  He said the change they were recommending was to assist in hardship situations such 
as a heritage tree taking up more than half of the side setback.  He said removing the maximum 
altogether would run the risk of unnecessary gaps occurring. 
 
Chair Onken said he was supportive of the two recommendations for setbacks.  He suggested that 
they review each item and determine if there was consensus.  He said if it was not clearly 
consensus they could vote.  He said finally they could draft a motion of other recommendations.   
 
Commissioner Goodhue said she supported both setback recommended changes. 
 
Commissioner Ferrick said she agreed with determining consensus.  She said she supported the 
recommendations and most important to her was establishing criteria for TDM. 
Commissioner Combs said he agreed with the recommendations and establishing criteria for the 
TDM program. 
 
Sidewalks 
Chair Onken said he supported the recommended change to sidewalks. 

PAGE 65



Approved Minutes Page 6 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

 
Commissioner Goodhue said regarding sidewalks that it seemed reactive and piecemeal and they 
should look at areas not addressed or not clear in the Plan and provide clear guidance.  Planner 
Lin said staff was recommending a comprehensive approach to look at all the streets.   
 
Hotel Parking Rate 
In response to a query from Chair Onken, Senior Planner Rogers said the proposed analysis of 
hotel parking rates was coming out of hotel development proposals that the Commission and City 
Council had considered:  the Marriott Residence Inn at 555 Glenwood Avenue and the Mermaid 
Inn at 727 El Camino Real, which was transitioning to the Hotel Lucent.  He said staff working on 
these two proposals realized that the 1.25 parking spaces per room required under the Plan was 
more for a hotel like Stanford Park that has extensive and independent conference facilities and 
restaurants.  He said although they were able to work out a lower rate for those proposals under 
the Plan as written, they thought it would be better to have the rate shown so as not to 
unnecessarily discourage potential new development proposals.   
 
Chair Onken said the 1.25 parking rate was standard for hotel use.  He said people tended to be 
concerned about hotel parking rates due to the potential for hotel guests to park on side roads.  He 
said Menlo Park’s overnight parking restrictions lessened that concern.  He said it was something 
to be careful about but noted hotels have arranged to share parking spaces with adjacent 
commercial sites.  
 
Commissioner Kadvany asked if there would be a new use category for limited service hotels that 
would place restrictions such as the size of a wedding party.  Senior Planner Rogers said that was 
something they would explore as part of a later analysis if the concept was supported.   
Commissioner Kadvany said parking spaces were valuable and expensive to build and if parking 
spaces could be built at lower marginal cost as part of the project perhaps that should be 
encouraged.  He suggested parking share or cost sharing as well. 
 
Commissioner Goodhue said one of the tenets of the Plan was density and proximity to transit.  
She said density could not be achieved with the traditional parking ratios.  She said it needed to be 
clear what was meant by limited service hotel use. 
 
Commissioner Combs said he supported the reduced parking ratio concept as presented.  He said 
that part of the parking requirement for the Marriott Residence Inn was met by the opportunity for 
guests to park along the railroad tracks.  Senior Planner Rogers said that had been historically 
allowed for the senior living facility and was not considered to have set a precedent, and would 
likely not be a pursuable option for other projects. 
 
Commissioner Strehl said her concern was whether the Commission would have the opportunity to 
review and have discretion as to whether a hotel was really limited service use or not.  Senior 
Planner Rogers said one of the architectural control findings the Commission makes was related to 
parking.  He said as part of that there would need to be a set of findings related to limited service 
hotels which the Commission had discretion to direct changes to. 
 

PAGE 66



Approved Minutes Page 7 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

Commissioner Strehl said she agreed that they wanted to limit trips up and down El Camino Real 
but one of the objectives of the hotel proposal was to create vibrancy downtown.  She said it 
couldn’t do that and provide limited services and reduced parking.  Senior Planner Rogers said he 
thought it better to frame the parking concept as finding the correct parking ratio for a particular 
proposal and not reducing parking. 
 
Commissioner Ferrick said she would not want them to understate the parking need either.  She 
noted that parking ratios had to include employee parking as well. 
 
Commissioner Strehl suggested parking be considered on a case by case basis. She said she did 
not feel strongly that the parking threshold should be lowered. 
 
Commissioner Kahle said he agreed with Commissioner Strehl.  Commissioner Ferrick said she 
concurred also. 
 
After further discussion, the Commission consensus was that the hotel parking minimum 
requirement should be kept as stated in the Plan, to remind developers of discretionary parking, 
and that parking could continue to be considered case by case as had been done with the limited 
service hotel proposals.  
 
Senior Planner Rogers said the 1400 El Camino Real hotel proposal had a parking ratio of 1.19 
spaces per room which was not a significant change from the 1.25 hotel parking ratio. 
 
Chair Onken asked the Commission if they agreed with the recommendation that staff not modify 
the hotel parking ratio for limited service hotel use and to expect discretion about the parking when 
such developments come before the Commission.  He noted that six Commissioners agreed and 
Commissioner Kadvany abstained.   
 
Personal Improvements Services Use 
Planner Lin, replying to Chair Onken, said there was no established parking rate for personal 
improvements services use.  She said staff needed to look carefully at the business model and 
operations of each proposal as it came in, and that these proposals required a great deal of staff 
time including the Transportation Division.  She said having a use category and parking ratio would 
help reduce staff time.   
 
Commissioner Goodhue said establishing a parking ratio seemed to be a more efficient use of staff 
time. Chair Onken said the parking number might intimidate this group of applicants.  
Commissioner Goodhue suggested that the applicants would be able to talk to staff about the 
process.   
 
Commissioner Kadvany asked if these parking rates if established would impact existing similar 
uses.  Planner Lin said it would not be applied retroactively and would be applied to new 
businesses looking to locate or relocate.   
 
Chair Onken said he would support staff establishing a parking rate for personal improvement 

PAGE 67



Approved Minutes Page 8 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

services after analysis.  He queried the other Commissioners, all of whom supported the concept. 
 
Senior Planner Rogers said regarding Additional Parking Reductions for Mixed-Use Projects in the 
Station Area Sphere of Influence that projects had to provide exactly the parking listed in the table 
with one allowance for a shared parking reduction.  He said this would allow for more case by case 
review for these projects and the area. 
 
Commissioner Goodhue said she supported the concept.  She said with density and providing 
public benefit that reduced parking coupled with a good TDM program supported the Plan.  
 
Commissioner Ferrick said she agreed. 
 
Commissioner Kadvany said he generally supported the concept but parking was needed 
downtown.   
 
Commissioner Combs said he supported but noted the Station area was a large part of the Plan. 
Chair Onken said he was happy for staff to look at this and make proposals. 
 
Commissioner Kadvany said he did not think this was a good use of staff time and was at cross 
purposes with an overall parking strategy. 
 
Chair Onken asked which Commissioners supported the recommendation for staff to look at 
additional parking reductions for mixed-use projects in the Station Area sphere of influence.   
 
Commissioners Combs, Ferrick and Goodhue supported the recommendation.  Commissioners 
Kadvany, Kahle, Onken and Strehl did not support the recommendation.   
 
Transportation Demand Management Programs 
Commissioner Ferrick said she supported this noting the staff report statement:….”that to provide 
clarification on the implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-2, staff recommends formalizing the 
City’s TDM program criteria as part of this mitigation measure.” 
 
Chair Onken said he was supportive.  Commissioner Goodhue said she also supported.  Chair 
Onken assessed that all of the Commissioners supported this recommendation. 
 
Electrical Vehicle Recharging Stations   
Commissioner Goodhue said she supported this and the City should be consistent with whatever 
agencies were leaders on this already.  There was consensus on supporting this recommendation. 
 
Public Benefit  
Commissioner Kadvany said as he presented this was a negotiation process and something the 
developer could agree to.  He said they were framing this from the perspective of the City and 
putting the burden on the developer to demonstrate why their project was different.  He said he did 
not like rigid or algorithmic processes.   
 

PAGE 68



Approved Minutes Page 9 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

Commissioner Combs confirmed with Commissioner Kadvany that the method proposed by 
Commissioners Kadvany and Onken was not to replace the pro forma analysis but to provide 
another data set that could be added to the process. 
 

Commissioner Strehl said she would like to have an expert consultant review and opine on the 
suggested model and the assumption of having a 50/50 split.  She said she would like more public 
dialogue and review on it.  She said the City Council had to establish priorities for the City and 
public benefits such as bicycle/pedestrian overpass or parking structure and where those should 
be located as part of the Plan. 
 
Commissioner Ferrick asked if this methodology was being used in other cities.  Commissioner 
Kadvany said he had not recently looked at other cities’ methods for determining public benefit.  
Commissioner Ferrick said it would be helpful to have information on other cities’ methodologies.  
She said she agreed with Commissioner Combs that it was good to have more information.  She 
said having someone review the methodology and how it would work would be helpful.   
 
Commissioner Goodhue said she concurred and she would like the Council to prioritize public 
benefit needs.  She said it would be helpful if an expert could provide them with some guiding 
principles when considering public benefit merits.  Chair Onken said the Commission does 
architectural control and that financial control was outside the Commission’s scope, in his opinion.  
He said having a mechanism to determine value and corresponding public benefit would be helpful. 
He said the goal as for staff and Council to do something like what Commissioner Kadvany offered 
to make the process more transparent and understandable so that decisions on public benefit did 
not seem like backroom deals. 
 
Commissioner Kadvany said he felt strongly about this as it seemed to be a detriment to 
development.  He said they needed more input from Council and what this money would be for.  
He said it was a value and policy judgment.  
 
Chair Onken said they were proactively requesting the City establish a model of benefit rather than 
each developer’s individual model.  Commissioner Kadvany said they have that with the pro forma 
and he was suggesting another way to look at determining public benefit. 
 
Commissioner Ferrick said there seemed to be support to recommend the City Council to look at 
this method of determining value and public benefit and consider putting resources to it.  
Commissioner Strehl said this needed more discussion and she wanted to include developers and 
others in that discussion.  She said she found some of what Mr. Pierce said compelling and some 
of what Commissioner Kadvany was recommending compelling.  Commissioner Goodhue said 
they were not proposing to hold up projects but rather to get the Council’s direction and guidance.   
 
Chair Onken asked if they could have a presentation at the Commission’s September meeting by 
the consultant who did this analysis as to how public benefit was calculated and why, and an 
analysis of Commissioner Kadvany’s model.  Commissioner Strehl said the consultant for the 
General Plan was also looking at public benefit and models for that, and perhaps they would have 
some thoughts or models.  Senior Planner Rogers said the September meeting would focus on the 

PAGE 69



Approved Minutes Page 10 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

General Plan and was not applicable to the Specific Plan.  
 
Commissioner Kadvany said the Stanford project was large but was just a base line project.  He 
said if Greenheart reverted to the base level they could have all office project.  He said the benefit 
process confounds the value issue of control and mixture of uses.  He said a large project could 
come forward at the baseline level.  He said he would like a middle area so that where a project 
goes to a scale such as two acres or an area of retail being replaced that the developer should 
know the City would want a discussion on the mix of uses in that project.  
 
Chair Onken said the consensus of the Commission was to have further clarification of the financial 
side of public benefit, that there were a number of models possible, and putting those into motion.  
Commissioner Ferrick said she thought they were forwarding the recommendation that the City 
Council consider this information and consider recommending further study on public benefit 
models or calculations methods. Commissioner Kahle asked to add the notion of getting back from 
the City Council what they wanted to see.  Commissioner Combs said this was discussed by 
Council during the development of the Plan and they had not expressed interest in changing the 
method.  Commissioner Ferrick said it was a suggestion to provide the Council with another 
potential method to calculating public benefit and the interest to have a more transparent process 
for determining public benefit.  Chair Onken said they were seeking to keep things open and 
continue the discussion.  Commissioner Kadvany said he would like them to encourage the 
Council to discuss this and get some feedback one way or another.  He said there were no 
obstacles to developers pursuing public benefit at this time.  He said the Planning Commission was 
in ways body to address public benefit because they had more time to learn and discuss the issues, 
while leaving the Council to be the final arbiter. 
 
Commissioner Ferrick recommended that the presentation be forwarded to the City Council with 
the request they consider re-opening discussion on public benefit methodologies and do that with 
public meetings.  All seven commissioners supported this action.    
 
Chair Onken said regarding the Specific Plan review that the total numbers of square footage of 
housing and non-residential indicated they were near the cap of non-residential development.  
Senior Planner Rogers said the Council could raise the caps with a new EIR or an applicant could 
approach the Council to increase the cap and accomplish the EIR. 
 

H. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:30 p.m. 
 
Staff Liaison:  Senior Planner Thomas Rogers 
 
Recording Secretary:  Brenda Bennett 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on September 21, 2015 
 

PAGE 70



Approved Minutes Page 11 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

 
Planning Commission meetings are recorded and audio broadcast live.  To listen to the live audio broadcast or 
to past recordings, go to www.menlopark.org/streaming. 

 
 

PAGE 71

http://www.menlopark.org/streaming


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 72



Rogers, Thomas H

From: Bob Burke <burke@greenheart.bz>
Sent Friday, July 31, 2015 4:30 PM
To: _Planning Commission
Cc: Steve Pierce
Subject: Comment Memo on El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan--Biennial Review
Attachments: Greenheart Memo on Kadvany Proposal 07-31-2015.pdf

The attached memo is addressed to the Planning Commissioners regarding the Staff Report 15-008-
PC & Attachment B to be discussed Monday (August 3rd) evening. Mr. Pierce will be present
Monday evening to answer any questions.

Thanks,

Bob Burke
Principal
Greenheart Land Company

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 73



To: Planning Commission
From: Bob Burke & Steve Pierce (Greenheart Land Company)
Date: July 31,2015
Re: Specific Plan Public Benefit Dollar Valuation Proposal (John Kadvany)

There are many merits to the Kadvany Valuation Proposal, but it does not accurately
reflect full scope of economic realities for many developments for the reasons stated
below. We therefore recommend that the current approach be the primary tool for
assessing public benefit with this proposed methodology being used for
informational purposes to the Planning Commission when evaluating each Public
Benefit proposal.

Current Methodology

The current Public Benefit (PB) methodology uses an outside consultant to
objectively analyze and estimate the additional value to the landowner created by
extra floor area afforded by PB. The consultant assesses the unique attributes of
the proposed development to quantify the value of the higher floor area ratio. The
value of the additional floor area is not the same for all developments. In two recent
examples, the proposed 1020 Alma development had a total public benefit office
FAR value of $183 per square foot (PSF) of additional FAR space while the 650 Live
Oak Development’s value of additional office and residential FAR allowed was $28
PSF.

Kadvany Proposal

The relative straightforward and objective nature of the Kadvany proposed process
has merit in that landowners and the City can easily gain a quick understanding of
the PB value parameters. The primary assumption in this proposed valuation
process is that the “assumed market price per acre” paid for the base FAR building
area would remain a straight line constant for the value of the additional floor area
allowed under the PB zoning. In real estate development, this assumption normally
does not hold true. Both marginal costs and revenue change with increased density
of development.

Marginal Cost

The PSF construction and development costs associated with increasing the density
of a development from the Base FAR to the PB FAR can be significantly different For
example, our proposed Station 1300 development will have an above ground
parking structure for the Base FAR development scenario, which will result in open
space at the minimum 20% required by the Specific Plan. Under the PB proposed
development, all of the required parking would be underground and 38% of the site
would be open space, and the large above ground concrete parking structure would
be eliminated. The cost for underground parking will be $27,000,000 more than
Base Case above ground parking which reduces the FAR value of the PB case.

PAGE 74



Due to construction techniques, structural requirements and so forth, there are
many examples where the marginal PSF cost to increase density is greater than the
average PSF cost for the Base FAR development Unlike the pro forma analysis, the
proposed Kadvany PB valuation process does not take that cost increase into
account.

Revenues

Secondly, the additional revenue gained from a more dense development maybe
less than the average PSF revenue obtained from a Base FAR development This is
especially true in residential developments where more density normally equates to
a lower price (or rent) on a PSF basis. A buyer (or renter) will pay a higher price (or
rent) PSF for a 1,500 SF two story townhouse with its own garage than a 1,500 SF
multi-story flat with a common parking garage. Additional density can reduce the
average revenue PSF causing the residual FAR land value of the additional space to
be less than the associated Base FAR land value paid.

Conclusion

We appreciate the approach Mr. Kadvany has proposed for the PB valuation process
and believe that simpli~ing the process has merit We agree that the value sharing
percentage with the City should be established for the Specific Plan Area, as this
would set the expectations for both the City and Landowner. Setting a sharing ratio
now will simplify negotiations later. However, it is crucial that every proposed
development be evaluated on its unique attributes and how they affect both revenue
and costs in going from the Base FAR to PB FAR.

PAGE 75



Rogers, Thomas H

From: Michael Levinson <michael@mdlevinson.com>
Sent Sunday, August 02, 2015 1:54 PM
To: _Planning Commission
Cc: _CCIN
Subject: What are we doing to make downtown Menlo vibrant?

Dear Planning Commission,

I have read several recent letters from residents regarding the General Plan, including those of Patti Frye,
George Fisher, and others. Lost in the process questions and technicalities is the main point, which is in my
opinion is this:

Why don’t we have a vibrant downtown? And what are we doing about it?

My personal opinion is that *we need density*. Density of residential to support nightlife and weekends, and
density of office to support the lunch hour and weekday shopping.

The Downtown Specific Plan envisioned two and three story buildings with housing and office over retail on
Santa Cruz. But none have been developed or even proposed. Why not? Townhouses and upstairs apartments
attract young professionals and downsizing empty nesters, both of whom would take advantage of downtown
without taxing the schools. And increasingly, such residents take Caltrain, Uber and bicycles, which means we
can afford to relax our outdated “two parking spaces per unit” requirements.

Some fear office buildings will bring traffic, but SurveyMonkey and other recent nearby developments show
that our old assumptions about driving habits are woefully outdated. We can add offices without dramatically
increasing car trips and doing so would bring dramatic benefits to our downtown.

All that said, I’m sure there are other root causes and other strategies to address them. I would love to see the
Planning Commission elevate the issue of Santa Cruz Ave vibrancy and specifically increasing density
downtown—as an explicit city goal.

Thank you for all your efforts.

Michael Levinson
Resident, Allied Arts

PAGE 76



Rogers, Thomas H

From: Patti L Fry <pattilfry@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 02, 2015 8:56 PM
To: _Planning Commission
Subject: Review of the ECR/Downtown Specific Plan
Attachments: 1300 El Camino Real ste net new 20150802.pdf

Dear Planning Commission,

The Menlo Park Planning Commissioners need more information to be provided to you in order to determine whether the Plan is working as
intended.

Important questions to ask, and some additional information to seek:

• Is the Plan improving the jobs/housing balance? A ratio of 1.56 new population to new jobs was expected, compared to the then-
current ratio of 1.78. Many in the community supported the Plan with the assumption that it would ease the housing crunch with
more transit-oriented housing. Housing demand is at an all time high nght now.
What is the ratio for the approi ed and pending projects What is the ci~ ‘s current ratio?

• Is the Plan maintaining or improving a balance of uses to serve our community, according to the Vision and community process
that created the Plan? The Plan was approved, based on an expectation that the benefits of the following development would
outweigh the negative impacts: 91,800 square feet SF) of retail. 240,820 square feet of commercial uses, 380 hotel rooms (a
total 474,000 square feet of non residential development) and 680 residential units.
What is the ratio for the approved and pending projects relative to each of the above?

• Has Menlo Park lost retail uses in the Specific Plan area? What is the amount of firmly committed net new retail? The 1300 El
Camino Real project developer has not committed to providing retail. The Plan expected that net new retail would be about 20%
of the total non-residential square feet. Palo Alto is considering severe development limits because of retail/restaurants that are
being displaced by offices. Is Menlo Park developing office space at the expense of retail and new residential development that
would support existing and new retail/restaurants.
What is the amount of net new retail and the retail percentage of total non-residential development for the approved and pending
projects?

This information is essential before moving forward with the review. With answers to such questions, the Commission and Council can
identify whether it is necessary to modify the Plan to better encourage the desired mix of development, and remedy any deterioration (e.g.,
lost retail). If these decisions are left to market forces in this current office boom time, retail opportunities will be shut out. Offices could
consume more of the developable space in the city.

Revisions in the staff report none address community concerns regarding

• Open Space - True, at-grade, open space is important to encourage ground level public plazas, gardens and walkways. Our
community accepted taller buildings with the expectation that this would allow ground-level space that would separate and
provide greater visual relief from the mass of adjacent structures. They accept the importance of private decks and balconies, but
not to the exclusion of true open space.
The Specific Plan should be modified to better encourage true open space, at grade level, in addition to balconies for upper level
residential units. Example ways: establish maximum lot coverage (by structures or hardscape), minimum landscaping, and/or
specify that a minimum of the required open space be at grade.

• Trigger for Public Benefit - The threshold is too high. Major projects are likely over the next 20-30 years on both the Stanford
and Big 5 shopping center sites at the Base zoning level. At the Base level, the city has no ability to negotiate public benefits
such as infrastructure improvement funding and support for bike/pedestrian passageways and undercrossing. Lowering the Public
Benefit threshold would provide needed additional leverage to secure public improvements.

• Amount of Office at public benefit level - The calculation for Office uses at the public benefit level needs to be corrected so it is
not possible to create an all-office project at the Public Benefit size. Best would be to retain the Base level absolute limit to
ensure that larger projects would be true mixed use. An alternative would be to limit office in a Public Benefit level project to a
percentage of the project (e.g., 30%), again encouraging mixed use projects.

1 PAGE 77



• Funding for Public Improvements - The Specific Plan described alternatives for obtaining funds for public improvements. Here it
is, 3 years into the Plan, and there still is no defined plan for funding. Already, more than 86% of the commercial development is
in the pipeline. The opportunity is slipping by extremely quickly.
As Jeff Tumlin of Nelson Nygaard advised ‘development in Menlo Park should be a privilege, and pay its fair share.”

Additional comments regarding information in the staff report:

• Public Benefit considerations - the proposal by commissioners Kadvany and Onken is a creative way to help decisionmakers and
applicants identify the ballpark of value expected at the Public Benefit development level.

• Transportation Demand Management - it is good to include city goals and objectives. Equally, if not more, important is to
include monitoring and enforcement mechanisms. Without measurable objectives and a tracking and enforcement
mechanism,TDM can be a loophole for developers~ putting residents at nsk as they suffer the traffic. It is not enough, for
example, for a building to have bike racks and showers if the expected reduction in traffic does not result. Furthermore, TDM
programs need ongoing monitoring and enforcement to ensure compliance.

• Variances/Maximum Setbacks . rather than modify what constitutes a variance, which could end up resulting in unintended
consequences, just remove the maximums for setbacks, especially on the sides.

• Net New Development in Table of Projects July 2015 - The net new residential units and non-residential square feet for the 1300 El
Camino Real project is not consistent with past information about net development provided in the Specific Plans EIR or in the
prior 1300 El Camino Real project’s EIR. This causes the Table to overstate substantially that project’s net new residential units
(by 108 units) and substantially understate the net new non residential square feet (by nearly 29,000 SF). See attached for more
detail.

Thank you for your consideration.

Patti Fry
former Menlo Park Planning Commissioner

PAGE 78



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL
SOURCE INFORMATION

Note that the current project site comprises the former Derry Lane project site, the former 1300 El
Camino Real project site, and 1258 El Camino Real.

DATE

August 3, 20151 Pc Staff Report
August 1, 20152 City Website

current Project
“Approved Project” (1300 ECR)
Other (Derry site)
Other (1258 El Camino Real)

Net
April 2011~ Specific Plan - Projects in EIR

Prior 1300 El Camirio Real
Derry, 580 Oak Grove

Subtotal
April 2010k Rogers Memo re Specific Plan EIR

EN1 project (assumed prior 1300 ECR
EN1 project (assumed Derry)

Subtotal
August 2009~ PC Staff Report — prior 1300 ECR

Effect of Gross Floor Area Re-definition
(a reduction of 3,757 SF)

March 20, 2009~ Draft EIR - prior 1300 ECR
Project

March 26, 2008~ Staff report — Derry CEQA
review

Original project (2006)
Revised project (2008)

August 20, 2OO7~ PC staff report — prior 1300 ECR
April 2006 Staff Report9 — original 1300 ECR
Assumptions in original Derry EIR re 1300 ECR

Original 1300 ECR discussed in study session

_____ Amount to be studied in 1300 ECR EIR

RESIDENTIAL UNITS NON-RESIDENTIAL SQUARE

_______________________________________ FEET __________

Red values are those that should have been corrected, based on prior analysis/reports, as
indicated by red arrows..

Yellow highlighted values are residential units or net square footage that inexplicably were not
used in subsequent calculations.

NOTE: Sources are shown on pages 3 and 4 of this document

NEW EXISTING

217,900

28,58\”1
N 21.290\

\49,874 ~

110,065
r1i~ 24,925

_~108 34,990
‘—F,

110,000
1” 25,000

135,000

3635k
85,

80,000
6.500

Redetintt..,
to be S
r
[106,308

-8,980
‘~ 8 065

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150802 Page lof4
PAGE 79



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

DISCUSSION

Discussion

The information about the current 1300 El Camino Real project in the staff report table (8/3/15)
does not map to information provided to the Menlo Park community in previous City of Menlo
Park documents. It does not reflect:

• Information provided in the Specific Plan EIR, which regarded both the prior 1300 ECR
and Derry Lane projects to have been built. Neither site was regarded as an Opportunity
Site.

• The prior 1300 ECR project’s EIR gross and net amounts, as per its EIR.
• The Gross Floor Area (GFA) re-definition

Thus, the current 1300 ECR project should be shown as

• net of any active uses for the 1258 ECR site,
• net of both of the prior Derry Lane and 1300 ECR projects - each of which received prior

CEQA review in the Specific Plan EIR and in their own individual project reviews..

Inexplicably the Specific Plan EIR did not incorporate the GFA re-definition adjustment for the
1300 ECR’s commercial square footage, so that adjustment should be reflected into the net in
the Table for this project since that is how GFA now is measured.

Suggested calculation for what is reported about the 1300 ECR project is circled below:

ADJUSTMENTS TO REPORTING OF 1300 ECR PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL UNITS NON-RESIDENTIAL SQUARE

FEET
EXISTING

Current Project - Gross 217,900
1300 ECR — from SP EIR I 81,481
GFA adjustment — 8/2009 I
Other (Derry site) - from SP EIR ~
Other (1258 El Camino Real) 91:359

Net New Development J
Amounts reported in Table
8/3/15 staff report

Difference between staff report Table and
what should be reported

(i.e., changes that should be made to Table)

The differences are significant. An average multi-family unit is roughly 1,400 SF. The amount of
commercial space that is understated is the equivalent size of 21 homes, or nearly 3 times the size of the
retail portion of the currently proposed 500 El Camino Real project.

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150802 Page 2 of 4
PAGE 80



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

SOURCES

Sources:
1 Planning Commission staff report Attachment A page 1: “The approved 1300 El Camino Real project is

credited like an existing building, since it received full CEQA clearance; active square footage also
credited.”

2 City of Menlo Park website regarding 1300 El Camino Real Project: “...up to 217,900 square feet of

commercial uses and up to 202 dwelling units....The project site encompasses an earlier development
proposal that was fully approved by the City Council for 110,065 new square feet of non-residential
uses, in addition to additional sites with approximately 10,000 square feet of active non-residential uses.
As a result, the current proposal would result in 97,835 (= 217,000-110,065- 10,000) net new square
feet of non-residential uses. The project site does not currently contain any existing or approved
dwelling units, so all of the project’s proposed 202 dwelling units would be net new residences.”

Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report Table 4-1 “List
of Projects Used in Cumulative Analysis” page 4-5, ESA/208581
Both the prior 1300 ECR and Derry projects were assumed by the Specific Plan EIR to be built
(approved/proposed projects); their sites were not considered Opportunity Sites. The net SF and
housing is shown in the table for this document: Derry/580 Oak Grove Residential 108 dwelling units;
Commercial 24,925 square fee; 21,290 square feet replaced. 1300 El Camino Real Commercial 110,065
square feet; Commercial 28,584 square feet replaced.

~ Memo from MP staff Thomas Rogers to staff Chip Taylor and consultant Atul Patel “ECR/D — traffic

analysis process” attachment “Menlo Park Downtown and El Camino Real Specific Plan Program
Summary, Net New Development — PREFERRED PLAN” dated April 2010. Shows Pipeline Projects” for
area EN1 (where 1300 ECR, 1258 ECR, Derry sites are): [1300 ECR] projected new commercial/office
58,700 SF; zero existing. Retail new 51,300 and existing 30,000, with net of 21,300 SF. Other [Derry] with
25,000 new retail, 18,500 SF existing and net 6,500 SF, and 108 new residential units.

5August 31, 2009 Planning Commission staff report “1300 El Camino Real/HP Los Altos, LLC” pageS
“The proposed project was designed in accordance with the City’s gross floor area definition in effect at
the time of the application submittal...The applicant estimates that the gross floor area under the
current definition would be 106,308 square feet, instead of 110,065 square feet.”

~ March 20, 2009 DEIR for 1300 El Camino Real. ISA Associates, Inc. page 32: “...the EIR analyzes the

environmental effects of the maximum development scenario (51,365 square feet of retail uses and
58,700 square feet of non-medical office).”

March 26, 2008 FEIR Revised Derry project. ISA Associates, Inc. page 2. Number of residential units 108
(16 BMR), non-medical office 12,275 SF, Retail/Restaurant 12,650SF for total commercial of 24,925 SF.
Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc. (page 12) shows existing uses as 21,290 SF.

8August 20, 2007 Planning Commission staff report “1300 El Camino Real/Sand Hill Property Company”
page 2. “Following the release of the NOP, the applicant clarified that three different commercial use
options are being considered for the 108,850 square feet.”

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150802 Page 3 of 4
PAGE 81



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

SOURCES

April 4, 2006CC Study Session regarding original 1300 ECR (#06-064). “The EIR will focus on the
difference between the impact of the 1300 El Camino Real project parameters studied in the Derry Lane
Mixed-Use Development Draft EIR and the current 1300 El Camino Real Proposal as summarized below:

Page 7 of 7
Staff Report #06-064

De DEIR 1300 El Camino Rea Pro Difference
Existing Auto 31000 sf vacant +3 000 sf

Proposed
Dwe ling Units 147 units 134 units 13 units

Commercial S ace 22 020 sf 78 065sf .56 045sf

Megan Fisher Justin Murphy
Assistant Planner Development Services Manager
Report Author

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150802 Page 4 of 4
PAGE 82



Rogers, Thomas H

From: Bob McGrew <bmcgrew@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 02, 2015 10:15 PM
To: 3lanning Commission
Cc: _CCIN
Subject: Eliminating dwelling intensity limits in the Downtown Specific Plan

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Menlo Park is facing a crisis of housing affordability. As the planning commission reviews the Downtown
Specific Plan, I request that you consider a change that will help address housing affordability, reduce impacts
on our school districts, and generate vibrancy for the downtown.

In the Downtown Specific Plan, residential development is limited by an overall unit cap, a cap on FAR for a
specific parcel, and a cap on dwelling units per acre. Given the cap on FAR and total units, the du/acre limit
effectively acts as a minimum unit size.

However, there are many reasons to prefer allowing smaller units. Smaller units are naturally affordable to
middle-income workers. They are well-suited to the needs of young professionals and senior citizens, both of
whom create minimal impacts on our crowded school system, compared to the families who would be most
suited for larger units. Finally, smaller units encourage residents to patronize local restaurants and night life,
generating more vibrancy for the downtown area.

As rents have continued to increase across the Bay Area, the young and the old especially have borne the
brunt of housing cost increases. Removing or relaxing the city’s redundant limit on dwelling intensity would be
a simple way to help them while generating vibrancy for the downtown.

Bob McGrew
Willows resident

PAGE 83



Rogers, Thomas H

From: Patti L Fry <pattilfry@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 03, 2015 10:15 AM
To: _Planning Commission
Subject amended attachment regarding 1300 El Camino Real project in Table
Attachments: 1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150803.pdf

Dear Commissioners,
I inadvertently sent an earlier version of the analysis and sources related to 1300 El Camino Real. Added to this
updated version are references from the prior project’s EIR that show that the ER assumed that the Derry Lane
project was built and that the car dealership was re-occupied. Thus, both of these must be netted against the
gross square footage and residential units for the project that was approved at that time. The Table to the staff
report shows only the gross, not the net, of what was studied in either the Specific Plan’s EIR or the prior
project’s EIR.

The corrected square footage would take the Specific Plan’s cumulative approved and proposed non-residential
square feet up to approximately 92% of the Maximum Allowable Development, and reduce the residential units
to about 48% of the Maximum Allowable Development.

This information provides a more accurate backdrop for discussion of how the Specific Plan is working, and for
future discussions about the 1300 El Camino Real project that will be coming forward very soon for
discretionary approval.

Patti Fry
former Planning Commissioner

PAGE 84



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL
SOURCE INFORMATION

Note that the current project site comprises the former Derry Lane project site, the former 1300 El
Camino Real project site, and 1258 El Camino Real.

DATE

August 3, 20151 Pc Staff Report
August 1, 20152 city Website

current Project
“Approved Project” (1300 EcR)
Other (Derry site)
Other (1258 El camino Real)

Net
April 2011~ Specific Plan - Projects in EIR

Prior 1300 El Camino Real
Derry, 580 Oak Grove

Subtotal
April 201o~ Rogers Memo re Specific Plan EIR

EN1 project (assumed prior 1300 EcR
EN1 project (assumed Derry)

Subtotal
August 2009~ PC Staff Report — prior 1300 ECR

Effect of Gross Floor Area Re-definition
(a reduction of 3,757 SF)

March 20, 2009~ Draft FIR - prior 1300 ECR
Project — compared w No Project that
assumes car dealership is re-occupied and
Derry Lane project is assumed to be built

March 26, 2008~ Staff report — Derry CEQA
review

Original project (2006)
Revised project (2008)

August 20, 20078 PC staff report — prior 1300 ECR
April 2006 Staff Report9 — original 1300 ECR
Assumptions in original Derry FIR re 1300 ECR

Original 1300 ECR discussed in study session
Amount to be studied in 1300 ECR EIR

Red values are those that should have been corrected, based on prior analysis/reports, as
indicated by red arrows..

Yellow highl ghted valu are residential units or net square footage that inexplicably were not
used in subsequent calculations.

NOTE: Sources are shown on pages 3 and 4 of this document

RESIDENTIAL UNITS NON-RESIDENTIAL SQUARE
FEET

EXISTING

Red
to be 4

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150803 Page 1 of 4
PAGE 85



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

DISCUSSION

Discussion

The information about the current 1300 El Camino Real project in the staff report table (8/3/15)
does not map to information provided to the Menlo Park community in previous City of Menlo
Park documents. It does not reflect:

• Information provided in the Specific Plan EIR, which regarded both the prior 1300 ECR
and Derry Lane projects to have been built. Neither site was regarded as an Opportunity
Site.

• The prior 1300 ECR project’s EIR gross and net amounts, as per its EIR.
• The Gross Floor Area (GFA) re-definition

Thus, the current 1300 ECR project should be shown as

• n~t of any active uses for the 1258 ECR site,
• net of both of the prior Derry Lane and 1300 ECR projects - each of which received prior

CEQA review in the Specific Plan EIR and in their own individual project reviews..

Inexplicably the Specific Plan EIR did not incorporate the GFA re-definition adjustment for the
1300 ECR’s commercial square footage, so that adjustment should be reflected into the net in
the Table for this project since that is how GFA now is measured.

Suggested calculation for what is reported about the 1300 ECR project is circled below:

ADJUSTMENTS TO REPORTING OF 1300 ECR PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL UNITS NON-RESIDENTIAL SQUARE

FEET
EXISTING

Current Project - Gross 217,900
1300 ECR—from SP EIR I 81,481
GFA adjustment — 8/2009 I
Other (Derry site) - from SP EIR I-... 3,635
Other (1258 El Camino Real)

Net New Development I
Amounts reported in Table
8/3/15 staff report

Difference between staff report Table and
what should be reported

(i.e., changes that should be made to Table)

The differences are significant. An average multi-family unit is roughly 1,400 SF. The amount of
commercial space that is understated is the equivalent size of 21 homes, or nearly 3 times the size of the
retail portion of the currently proposed 500 El Camino Real project.

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150803 Page 2 of 4PAGE 86



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

SOURCES

Sources:
1 Planning Commission staff report Attachment A page 1: “The approved 1300 El Camino Real project is

credited like an existing building, since it received full CEQA clearance; active square footage also
credited.”

2 City of Menlo Park website regarding 1300 El Camino Real Project: “...up to 217,900 square feet of

commercial uses and up to 202 dwelling units....The project site encompasses an earlier development
proposal that was fully approved by the City Council for 110,065 new square feet of non-residential
uses, in addition to additional sites with approximately 10,000 square feet of active non-residential uses.
As a result, the current proposal would result in 97,835 (= 217,000- 110,065- 10,000) net new square
feet of non-residential uses. The project site does not currently contain any existing or approved
dwelling units, so all of the project’s proposed 202 dwelling units would be net new residences.”

Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report Table 4-1 “List
of Projects Used in Cumulative Analysis” page 4-5, ESA/208581
Both the prior 1300 ECR and Derry projects were assumed by the Specific Plan EIR to be built
(approved/proposed projects); their sites were not considered Opportunity Sites. The net SF and
housing is shown in the table for this document: Derry/580 Oak Grove Residential 108 dwelling units;
Commercial 24,925 square fee; 21,290 square feet replaced. 1300 El Camino Real Commercial 110,065
square feet; Commercial 28,584 square feet replaced.

~ Memo from MP staff Thomas Rogers to staff Chip Taylor and consultant Atul Patel “ECR/D — traffic

analysis process” attachment “Menlo Park Downtown and El Camino Real Specific Plan Program
Summary, Net New Development — PREFERRED PLAN” dated April 2010. Shows Pipeline Projects” for
area EN1 (where 1300 ECR, 1258 ECR, Derry sites are): [1300 ECR] projected new commercial/office
58,700 SF; zero existing. Retail new 51,300 and existing 30,000, with net of 21,300 SF. Other [Derry] with
25,000 new retail, 18,500 SF existing and net 6,500 SF, and 108 new residential units.

5August 31, 2009 Planning Commission staff report “1300 El Camino Real/HP Los Altos, LLC” page 5
“The proposed project was designed in accordance with the City’s gross floor area definition in effect at
the time of the application submittal...The applicant estimates that the gross floor area under the
current definition would be 106,308 square feet, instead of 110,065 square feet.”

6 March 20, 2009 DEIR for 1300 El Camino Real. LSA Associates, Inc. page 32: “...the EIR analyzes the

environmental effects of the maximum development scenario (51,365 square feet of retail uses and
58,700 square feet of non-medical office).” On page 97, in the Transportation analysis section, LSA
Associates states that the Derry project was assumed to be part of the No Project background: “Near
term no project traffic volumes were derived by adding to existing (2006) traffic volumes an annual
growth rate of 1 percent for 4 years in anticipation of project buildout in the year 2010...Since the Derry
Lane project is included in the near-term no project scenario, it is assumed that the Garwood Way
extension will be completed in this scenario...The traffic that would be generated by the re-occupancy
of the vacant auto dealership onsite were added to near-term no project traffic volumes to obtain
traffic volumes under near-term with auto dealership conditions” [emphasis added]

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150803 Page 3 of 4
PAGE 87



NET NEW DEVELOPMENT AT 1300 EL CAMINO REAL, cont.

SOURCES
March 26, 2008 FEIR Revised Derry project. LSA Associates, Inc. page 2. Number of residential units 108

(16 BMR), non-medical office 12,275 SF, Retail/Restaurant 12,650 SF for total commercial of 24,925 SF.
Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc. (page 12) shows existing uses as 21,290 SF.

8August 20, 2007 Planning Commission staff report “1300 El Camino Real/Sand Hill Property Company”
page 2. “Following the release of the NOP, the applicant clarified that three different commercial use
options are being considered for the 108,850 square feet.”

April 4, 2006CC Study Session regarding original 1300 ECR (#06-064). “The EIR will focus on the
difference between the impact of the 1300 El Camino Real project parameters studied in the Derry Lane
Mixed-Use Development Draft EIR and the current 1300 El Camino Real Proposal as summarized below:

Page 7 017
Staff Report #06-064

Do DEIR 1300 El Camino Real Pro osal Difference
Existiig.tuto 31,000sf vacant +31,000 sI

Proposed
Dwelling Units 147 units 134 units 13 units

Commercial S ce 22 020 sf 78 065 sf ÷56 045 sI

Megan Fisher Justin Murphy
Assistant Planner Development Services Manager
Report Author

1300 El Camino Real site net new 20150803 Page 4 of 4
PAGE 88



Project Address Description Development 
Level

Entitlement 
Status

Building Permit 
Status

Net New 
Res. Units

Net New Non-
Res. SF Notes

Marriott 
Residence Inn

555 Glenwood 
Avenue

Conversion of a senior citizens 
retirement living center to a 138-
room limited-service, business-
oriented hotel 

Public Benefit 
Bonus Approved

Issued 
11/12/13; 
Completed 
4/30/15 0 71,921

No new square footage was constructed, 
but the net new vehicle trips associated 
with the conversion are considered 
equivalent to the listed square footage

Mermaid Inn
727 El Camino 
Real

Comprehensive renovation of an 
existing hotel, including an eight-
room expansion Base Approved

Issued 5/14/14; 
Construction in 
progress 0 3,497

612 College
612 College 
Avenue

Demolition of a residence and a 
commercial warehouse building, 
and construction of four new 
residential units Base Approved Issued 9/29/15 3 -1,620

1295 El 
Camino Real

1283-1295 El 
Camino Real

Demolition of two commercial 
buildings and construction of a 
new mixed-use residential and 
commercial development Base Approved

No application 
yet 15 -4,474

500 El Camino 
Real

300-550 El Camino 
Real

Construction of a new mixed-use 
office, residential, and retail 
development Base Proposed n/a 170 181,568

Existing square footage needs to be 
double-checked; project expected to be 
revised and resubmitted

1300 El 
Camino Real

1258-1300 El 
Camino Real, 550-
580 Oak Grove 
Avenue, and 540-
570 Derry Lane

Construction of a new mixed-use 
office, residential, and retail 
development

Public Benefit 
Bonus Proposed n/a 202 97,835

The approved 1300 El Camino Real 
project is credited like an existing 
building, since it received full CEQA 
clearance; active square footage also 
credited

840 Menlo 
Avenue 840 Menlo Avenue

Construction of a new mixed-use 
office and residential 
development on a vacant parcel Base Proposed n/a 3 6,936

133 Encinal 
Ave 133 Encinal Ave

Demolition of several commercial 
buildings and construction of a 
new townhome-style 
development Base Proposed n/a 24 -6,166

650 Live Oak 
Ave 650 Live Oak Ave

Demolition of commercial 
building and construction of new 
office-residential development

Public Benefit 
Bonus Proposed n/a 15 10,815

Linked with 660 Live Oak Ave proposal, 
although that parcel is not in the Specific 
Plan area and as such is not included in 
this table.

1020 Alma St 1010-1026 Alma St

Demolition of existing 
commercial buildings and 
construction of new office 
development

Public Benefit 
Bonus Proposed n/a 0 14,884

1400 El 
Camino Real

1400 El Camino 
Real

Construction of new 63-room 
hotel

Public Benefit 
Bonus Proposed n/a 0 31,781

1275 El 
Camino Real

1275 El Camino 
Real

Construction of new mixed-use 
development on a vacant site Base Proposed n/a 3 12,197

18 69,324

3% 15%

417 349,850

61% 74%

435 419,174

64% 88%

3 73,798

0% 16%

680 474,000

Total Entitlements Approved and Proposed

Percentage of Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development

Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development

Total Entitlements Approved

Percentage of Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development

Total Entitlements Proposed

Percentage of Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development

Total Building Permits Issued

Percentage of Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development

ATTACHMENT C

PAGE 89



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 90



ROBERT J. LANZONE 
JEAN B. SAVAREE 
GREGORY J. RUBENS 
CAMAS J. STEINMETZ 

KAI RUESS 
KIMBERLY L. CHU 

CAMAS J. STEINMETZ, Ext. 225 
Email:  csteinmetz@adcl.com 

LAW OFFICES 
AARONSON, DICKERSON, COHN & LANZONE

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
1001 LAUREL STREET, SUITE A 

SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA 94070 
PHONE: 650-593-3117 

FAX: 650-453-3911 
www.adcl.com 

September 28, 2015 

MICHAEL AARONSON  
(1910-1998) 

KENNETH M. DICKERSON  
(1926-2008) 

MELVIN E. COHN 
    (1917-2014) 

Thomas Rogers 
Senior Planner 
City of Menlo Park 
THRogers@menlopark.org 

VIA: Email 

Re: Downtown El Camino Specific Plan Modifications 

Dear Thomas: 

I understand from my client, the Pollock Financial Group, that you are recommending certain 
minor modifications to the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan (“Specific Plan”) for the City 
Council's biennial review at its upcoming October 6th meeting.  We would like you to consider 
recommending two additional minor modifications to the Specific Plan with regard to (1) gross 
floor area calculation for hotel projects; and (2) facade modulation requirements for smaller 
buildings.  As discussed below, these additional modifications would not only facilitate the 
preferred design for my client’s proposed boutique hotel on a 0.5 acre site located at 1400 El 
Camino Real, they would also further several principals and objectives of the Specific Plan. 

1. Requested Modification to Gross Floor Area Calculation for Small Hotels

The Specific Plan projects development of 380 additional hotel rooms at full build-out (Specific 
Plan, C20) and identifies hotels as “a desirable use for the City from a fiscal and economic 
development perspective.” (Specific Plan, B6.)  It notes that they “generate transient occupancy 
taxes, an important source of local revenue… [and] generate spending at nearby businesses 
such as restaurants and retail stores.” (Id.)   

To encourage and facilitate hotel use, we propose that the Specific Plan be modified to help 
overcome certain space challenges and site constraints particular to hotels, especially hotels on 
smaller sites, by excluding hotel “back-of-house” uses located in basement areas from the gross 
square footage calculation.  

ATTACHMENT D

PAGE 91

mailto:THRogers@menlopark.org


 
September 28, 2015 

Page 2 
 
As explained in Section E.3.1 of the Specific Plan, maximum development intensity of 
commercial projects is measured by floor area ratio (FAR) which is the ratio of gross floor area 
of all buildings and structures to lot area, expressed in square feet. Section 16.04.325 of the 
Zoning Ordinance describes what portions of a building are included and what portions of a 
building are excluded in the calculation of gross floor area.  (Specific Plan, E13.)   

While maximum FAR varies by Zoning District, it is the same for all uses within a Zoning District.  
See Tables E2, E6-E15. Hotels, however have site constraints and space challenges that are not 
shared by other uses.  For example, hotels cannot take advantage of certain economies of scale 
as each individual guest room requires its own climate control unit and the mechanical room 
requires secondary water pump to ensure sufficient water pressure for showers running 
simultaneously.  Moreover hotels require what are known as “back-of-house” supporting uses 
required to serve guests, yet are not accessible to guests, such as storage areas, mechanical 
rooms, employee break rooms, laundry facilities and maintenance/ repair rooms that are 
required regardless of the number of hotel rooms.  

To help reduce these space constraint challenges for smaller hotels and thereby encourage this 
desired use, we propose that a new development standard be added to Section E.3.1 of the 
Specific Plan as follows: 

“Notwithstanding Section 16.04.325 of the Zoning Ordinance, in 
calculating FAR for hotel uses on sites less than 1.0 acre, the following 
uses shall be excluded from gross floor area provided they are located in 
basement areas and provided they do not exceed 15% of the maximum 
gross floor area for the lot: back-of-house spaces not accessible to hotel 
guests including storage areas, mechanical equipment enclosures, 
employee lockers, employee break rooms, employee restrooms, 
maintenance and repair shops, janitors closets, and laundry facilities.”  

Alternatively, this language could be inserted as a second footnote asterisk to Table E2.  We 
note that while this modification will certainly help overcome site constraint obstacles 
particular to smaller hotels and allow for greater site design flexibility, it is a relatively minor 
adjustment.  Many other cities in the area have increased allowable FAR overall for hotel use to 
incentivize development of hotels and the significant transit occupancy taxes they generate. For 
example, Palo Alto allows an FAR of 2.0 for hotel use in its Commercial Services district, 
compared to an FAR of 0.4 for all other uses.  (See Table 3 and Section 18.16.060(d) of Chapter 
18.16 of the Palo Alto Municipal Code.) 

  

PAGE 92



 
September 28, 2015 

Page 3 
 

2. Requested Modification to Required Facade Modulations for Multi-Story Buildings on 
Small Sites 

Guiding principles of the Specific Plan include generating vibrancy and enhancing connectivity. 
These principles are accomplished in part through the development standards set forth in 
Section E.3 which govern development intensity (discussed above), setbacks, massing and 
modulation and ground floor treatment, among others.   

For projects on smaller sites, like my client’s project, there can be tension, if not direct conflict, 
between these standards.  For example, my client’s site is subject to the maximum 25 foot side 
yard setback set forth in Table E7.  This in turn dictates the length of the proposed building at 
104 feet, which in turn triggers the requirement for the major building modulation requirement 
set forth in Section E.3.4.02 which requires a 6 ft. deep by 20 ft. wide recess or a minimum 6 ft. 
setback of building plane from the primary building façade for the full height of the building.   

Unless some flexibility is provided to meet this modulation requirement, our ability to satisfy 
the 50% transparency requirement in Section E.3.5.02 and fully achieve the overarching Specific 
Plan principles to generate vibrancy and enhance connectivity is compromised.  This is because 
achieving the 20 foot width required by the major building modulation results in a severe 
shortening of our proposed “pavilion”, a separate one-story three-sided structure designed to 
define the El Camino street wall and activate the pedestrian realm by providing an interface 
between passers-by and the activities inside the hotel.  The pavilion was specifically suggested 
and encouraged by staff to achieve street wall definition and the transparency requirement and 
the vibrancy and connectivity principles. Yet the major modulation requirement that the 
building just barely triggers (at 104 ft.), requires a reduction in the pavilion to the point where it 
would not fully achieve its originally intended purpose.  

The purpose of the modulation requirement is to “help reduce the monolithic character of a 
building… and provide variety and visual interest.”  (Specific Plan, E24)  To continue to achieve 
this purpose while avoiding conflict with other development standards, we propose that one or 
more of the following sentences be inserted prior to the last sentence of Section E.3.4.3.02: 

• For multi-story buildings, the major vertical façade modulation must only extend 
through one-half or more of the building floors (or alternatively, through the floors 
above the first floor). 

• A 20% increase in maximum side yard setback may be permitted to achieve (or avoid 
triggering) the major modulation requirement.    

• The major vertical modulation requirement shall only be triggered if the 100 feet of 
façade length is contained in a single building (i.e. two or more separate, distinct 
buildings totaling 100 feet or more, even if along the same plane, shall not trigger the 
major vertical modulation requirement). 

PAGE 93



 
September 28, 2015 

Page 4 
 

• For buildings less than 120ft. in length, a change in building materials (such as glass for 
example) that effectively contrasts from the rest of the façade for the width of 20 ft., 
may be used in lieu of the otherwise required 6 ft. recess or setback. 

• For building facades where the entire length of the proposed building is within 10% of 
the 100 foot length that will trigger the major modulation requirement, such building 
facades shall be allowed to: a) include only either a major modulation component or 
minor modulation component, but not both; or b) be required to apply the major 
modulation requirement only to that portion of the building that exceeds 100 feet in 
length. 

 
Many thanks for your consideration of these minor modifications to the Specific Plan which we 
believe will make a big difference in avoiding potential conflicts between the development 
standards and allowing for flexibility of design that achieves the overall governing principals of 
the Specific Plan. 
 
 
     Very truly yours, 

                                               
 
     Camas J. Steinmetz 
CJS: 
 
Cc: Bill McClure, City Attorney 
 Jean Lin, Planner 
 Jeff Pollock, Pollock Financial Group 
 Alex McIntyre, City Manager 
 Ross Edwards, Sr. 
 Mark Hornberger  
 John Spanier  
 James Cogan 
 
 

PAGE 94



Public Works 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   10/6/2015 
Staff Report Number:  15-149-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Update on the State of California Model Water 

Efficient Landscape Ordinance (CA MWELO)  
 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item only and requires no City Council action. 

 
Policy Issues 
The City has a current Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO), which will need to be updated as a 
result of recent State action.  

 
Background 
In April 2015, the Governor of California issued an executive order directing the California Department of 
Water Resources (DWR) to update the State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (CA MWELO) 
in order to address the current four year drought and build resiliency for future droughts. In June 2015, the 
DWR invited comment on the new draft and held several public meetings. The draft, meeting notices, and 
additional information can be found at:  

http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/2015/EO_B_29_15_MWELO_Update_06_12_15%28VL
%29_Public_Draft.pdf.   

The DWR adopted the proposed CA MWELO in July 2015 and on September 15, 2015 the California 
Secretary of State ordered the regulations to be incorporated into Division 2, Title 23, California Code of 
Regulations to amend Chapter 2.7 Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, Sections 490 through 495. 
It normally takes several weeks for new regulations to be published. Attachment A shows the regulations 
as submitted by the State for publication. 

The Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA), of which the City of Menlo Park is a 
member, is planning to draft a regional MWELO for possible adoption by member agencies. 

 
Analysis 
State law requires all land-use agencies, such as cities and counties, to adopt a water-efficient landscape 
ordinance that is at least as efficient as the CA MWELO prepared by DWR. DWR’s model ordinance takes 
effect in those cities and counties that fail to adopt their own. Cities acting on their own are required to 
adopt their new WELO by December 1, 2015. Agencies adopting a regional ordinance, such as the model 
being designed by BAWSCA, have a deadline of February 1, 2016. 
 
The revisions to the CA MWELO reduce the size threshold subject to the WELO ordinance from 2,500 

AGENDA ITEM K-1

PAGE 95

http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/2015/EO_B_29_15_MWELO_Update_06_12_15%28VL%29_Public_Draft.pdf
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/2015/EO_B_29_15_MWELO_Update_06_12_15%28VL%29_Public_Draft.pdf


Staff Report #: 15-149-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

square feet of landscaping to 500 square feet of landscaping for both commercial and residential property. 
The CA MWELO requires specific water efficiency, and will make it very difficult to install and maintain turf 
in new developments that are dependent on potable water, especially in commercial and industrial 
settings. Use of recycled water is exempt from these limitations. Land-use agencies also will be required to 
report on ordinance adoption and enforcement each year, beginning December 31, 2015. (Those agencies 
that plan to adopt a regional ordinance will report that they are planning to adopt a regional ordinance by 
February 1, 2016 for the first year). New third party inspections and annual reporting to the State, which 
are required in the 2015 CA MWELO, will increase the City’s costs and therefore increase permit fees paid 
by builders. 
 
The City of Menlo Park last updated its WELO in 2010 as municipal code section 12.44 
(http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/menlopark/). The municipal code requires water efficient plans for 
commercial and single family buildings with a landscape area of 2,500 square feet or larger. Currently city 
Engineers, or their consultants, review the plans and an audit is required, which can be completed by the 
landscape designer. To date, City records indicate that all qualifying commercial projects and most 
qualifying residential projects complete this process. Approximately 20 percent of qualifying residential 
projects submit building permit applications and do not plan landscape improvements. Residents are 
allowed to make building alterations without making landscape upgrades, except when erosion control is 
required. As a result, there is a possibility that some deferred landscaping projects do not meet the 
current City WELO guidelines, as they are not reviewed by an auditor or engineer.   
 
In the few cases where landscaping is installed without alteration of a building, no permit is required and 
WELO requirements do not apply. This is a non-issue for most projects, as permits are required for a 
variety of activities (including building construction, grading, hillside construction, retaining walls over two 
feet high, and fences over seven feet high), but permits are not required for basic landscaping. This is an 
area of possible concern in the current and forthcoming WELOs because residents sometimes express 
concerns to the City when they see neighbors or realtors install sod or other non-drought tolerant 
landscaping materials, especially in preparation for sale of a home. Staff is not aware of any city that 
requires permits for landscaping, and the City does not currently have the staff capacity to support an 
additional permit category of landscaping to monitor these projects. A resolution to this possible loop hole 
has not yet been identified.  
 
Below is a summary of the most significant changes to measures included in the CA MWELO compared 
to the current BAWSCA WELO and current City WELO. 
 

Comparison of changes 

Measure CA MWELO 
2015 

Current BAWSCA 
WELO Current City WELO 

Effective Date December 1, 
2015 

Varies by Agency July 1, 2010 

Applicability: New 
Landscape 

500 sq. ft. 1,000 sq. ft. 2,500 sq. ft. 

Applicability: Landscape 
Rehabilitation 

2,500 sq. ft. 1,000 sq. ft. 2,500 sq. ft.  

Street Medians No turf 
allowed 

Turf allowed Turf allowed 

Parking Strips - No Turf 
Allowed 

Less than 10 
ft. wide 

Less than 8 ft. wide Less than 8 ft. wide 

Mulch Depth Required 3 inches 2 inches required 2 inches required 

PAGE 96

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/menlopark/


Staff Report #: 15-149-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

required 
Compost Must be 

used 
Not required Not required 

Swimming Pools Must 
recirculate 
water 

Must recirculate water Recirculation not required; 
Covers required for new 
pools and spas 

Commercial: Dedicated 
Irrigation Water Meter 
Required 

Greater than 
1,000 sq. ft. 
of 
landscaping 

Greater than 5,000 sq. 
ft. of landscaping 

Greater than 5,000 sq. ft. of 
landscaping (Above 
5,000SF, Water Code 535 
applies) 

Residential: Dedicated 
Irrigation Water Meter 
Required  

Greater than 
5,000 sq. ft. 
of 
landscaping 

Greater than 5,000 sq. 
ft. of landscaping 

Not required 

Non-volatile Irrigation 
Meter Memory (not lost 
in power outage) 

Required Not required Not required 

Commercial: Water 
Budget Efficiency 
Requirement 

Greater than 
92% 

70% 70% 

Residential: Water 
Budget Efficiency 

Greater than 
85% 

70% 70% 

Irrigation System 
Precipitation Rate 

No greater 
than 1 
inch/hour 

Not required Not required 

24 hour retention or 
infiltration capacity of 
storm water BMPs 

Required Not required Not required 

Subsurface Irrigation 
Only for Turf Less Than: 

10 ft. wide 8 ft. wide  8 ft. wide  

Landscape Audit Must be 
performed by 
3rd party 

May be conducted by 
applicant for Tier 1 
landscapes; must be 
conducted by certified 
auditor for Tier 2 
landscapes 

May be self-certified by 
designer 

Commercial: % of 
reference 
Evapotranspiration 
(ETo) allowance 

45% Use full reference ETo Use full reference ETo 

Residential: % of 
reference ETo 
allowance 

55% Use full reference ETo Use full reference ETo 

 
The attached slides explaining the CA MWELO were created by BAWSCA and presented to the BAWSCA 
member agency Water Representative Group on August 5, 2015. The City is a BAWSCA member; 
however in the past the City adopted its own WELO. Staff provided the Environmental Quality Commission 
(EQC) information regarding the CA MWELO in August 2015, in anticipation of City Council consideration 
in December 2015 according to anticipated state requirements.  

PAGE 97



Staff Report #: 15-149-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
For 2015, staff anticipates recommending that the City Council adopt the BAWSCA MWELO, with the 
BAWSCA 1,000 sq. ft. threshold for rehabilitation landscapes, and possibly adding the Menlo Park 
requirement for covers on pools and spas.  This will ensure alignment with neighboring BAWSCA 
members and provide additional time to adopt the ordinance.  Alignment with neighboring communities’ 
WELOs provides residents, designers, landscapers, and contractors with generally consistent compliance 
requirements across regional boundaries. 
 
Below is staff’s proposed timeline for 2015 WELO adoption based on adoption of the BAWSCA MWELO: 

Proposed timeline 
Date Action 
September 2015 CA MWELO finalized 

October 2015 WELO City Council Information Item 
Work with BAWSCA members to draft BAWSCA WELO 

November 2015 BAWSCA MWELO Final Draft 

December 2015 Menlo Park WELO 1st reading 
Report regional WELO adoption progress to DWR 

January 2016 Menlo Park WELO 2nd reading 

February 2016 Full WELO implementation 
Report adoption to DWR 

 

 
Impact on City Resources 
There are two main impacts to City resources, which will require further study to determine the quantity of 
additional resources needed. 
 
1. Additional projects will be covered by the MWELO and audits must be performed by a third party. 

Currently WELO plans are sorted by City staff and reviewed by a consultant who is overseen by City 
staff. Additional consultant work and auditing will be required, which should be covered by permit fees. 
City staff will be needed to oversee the process, and screen and select the consultants. Permit 
application fees may need to be adjusted in July 2016. 

2. The 2015 MWELO includes new reporting by Cities to the State. A new system of tracking and 
reporting WELO activities will need to be designed and implemented to capture the required data 
points from various users, prepare reports and transmit the annual reports to the State. The cost of the 
new reporting required by the State is not yet known. 

 
Environmental Review 
Environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is not required at this time. 

 
Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

PAGE 98



Staff Report #: 15-149-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Attachments 
A. 2015 California Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance as submitted for publication 
B. BAWSCA MWELO Slides , dated August 5, 2015 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Heather Abrams, Environmental Programs Manager 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 99



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 100



ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 101



PAGE 102



PAGE 103



PAGE 104



PAGE 105



PAGE 106



PAGE 107



PAGE 108



PAGE 109



PAGE 110



PAGE 111



PAGE 112



PAGE 113



PAGE 114



PAGE 115



PAGE 116



PAGE 117



PAGE 118



PAGE 119



PAGE 120



PAGE 121



PAGE 122



PAGE 123



PAGE 124



PAGE 125



PAGE 126



PAGE 127



PAGE 128



PAGE 129



PAGE 130



PAGE 131



PAGE 132



PAGE 133



PAGE 134



PAGE 135



PAGE 136



PAGE 137



PAGE 138



PAGE 139



PAGE 140



PAGE 141



PAGE 142



PAGE 143



PAGE 144



PAGE 145



PAGE 146



PAGE 147



PAGE 148



PAGE 149



PAGE 150



Water Management 
Representatives 

August 5, 2015 

Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency 

“A multicounty agency authorized to 
plan for and acquire supplemental 
water supplies, encourage water 
conservation and use of recycled 
water on a regional basis.” 
[Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency Act, 
AB2058(Papan-2002)] 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 151



Updated Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance Adopted 
 Governor’s Executive Order called for revised 

MWELO to increase efficiency standards 
 Key revisions to the MWELO include: 

oReduced landscape size threshold 
oDedicated landscape meter requirements 
o Incentives for graywater usage 
oStricter irrigation system efficiency standards 
o Limits on the percentage of turf planted 
oRequired reporting by local agencies 

 
PAGE 152



Landscape Size Threshold 
Reduced to 500 Sq. Ft.  
 Landscape size threshold reduced to 500 sq. ft. for 

new projects 
o Prescriptive checklist approach is a compliance option 

for landscapes under 2,500 sq. ft. 
 Landscape size threshold remains at 2,500 sq. ft. for 

rehabilitated landscapes 
 Threshold in existing BAWSCA Model Ordinance is 

1,000 sq. ft. for new or rehabilitated landscapes 

PAGE 153



Limits on Turf Areas 
 Maximum applied water allowance reduced to: 

o 55% of reference ETo for residential projects 
o 45% of reference ETo for CII projects 

 New limits reduce landscape area that can be 
planted with turf to 25% in residential landscapes 

 45% adjustment factor does not provide enough 
water for any turf in CII landscapes 
o Turf installations still be permitted when used for 

specific functions 
 Turf not allowed in median strips or parkways 

PAGE 154



Irrigation System Efficiency 
Standards Increased 
 Dedicated landscape water meters or submeters for: 

o Residential landscapes over 5,000 sq. ft. 
o Non-residential landscapes over 1,000 sq. ft. 

 Pressure regulators and master shut-off valves 
required 

 Flow sensors to detect high flow conditions required 
for landscape over 5,000 sq. ft. 

 Landscapes under 2,500 sq. ft. and irrigated entirely  
with graywater only subject to irrigation checklist 

PAGE 155



Local Agencies Must Report to 
DWR on Implementation 
 Local agency reporting on implementation and 

enforcement must be submitted: 
o By December 31, 2015 
o By January 31st in subsequent years 

 Existing regional ordinances (like BAWSCA’s) may 
remain in effect until February 1, 2016 
o Must report to DWR by December 31st and state that 

they are revising regional ordinance. 
o Must report to DWR by March 1, 2016 on adopted 

regional ordinance 
PAGE 156



BAWSCA to Consider New 
MWELO 
 Original BAWSCA MWELO differed from the DWR 

ordinance in the following: 
o Size threshold 
o Documentation requirements 

 Size threshold is still a concern for landscape 
rehabilitations projects 
o BAWSCA ordinance: >1,000 sq. ft. 
o DWR ordinance: >2,500 sq. ft. 

 New BAWSCA ordinance would need to prove just as 
effective as DWR MWELO 

 BAWSCA will work with Water Resources Committee to 
make final determination by Fall 2015 PAGE 157



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 158


	G1 - Commission Appointments - All
	I1 - Sponsorship Policy - All
	Partnership and Sponsorship Policy Staff Report
	Partnership & Sponsorship Policy

	I2 - Accept the Casey Construction work - All
	I3 - Accept the Thermal Mechanical work - All
	I4 - Facebook Strom Drain Line Easement  ALL
	PW- Facebook Strom Drain Line Easement - SR
	Att A - Resolution of the City of Menlo Park Accepting a Storm Drain Easement from Hibiscus Properties LLC
	Att B - Storm Drain Line Agreement

	I5 - Minutes - All
	090815 - Draft
	092115 - Draft

	J1 - Connect Menlo
	J2 - Specific Plan Biennial Review - All
	K1 - MWELO - All
	Att B - BAWSCA MWELO Slides.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Updated Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance Adopted
	Landscape Size Threshold Reduced to 500 Sq. Ft.	
	Limits on Turf Areas
	Irrigation System Efficiency Standards Increased
	Local Agencies Must Report to DWR on Implementation
	BAWSCA to Consider New MWELO





